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INTRODUCTORY NOTE

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A (this “Amendment No. 1”) amends the Current Report on Form 8-K of Berkshire Grey, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (the “Company”), filed on July 27, 2021 (the “Original Report”), in which the Company reported, among other events, the completion of the
Business Combination (as defined in the Original Report).

This Amendment No. 1 (i) includes the unaudited financial statements of Legacy Berkshire Grey (as defined in the Original Report) as of and for the
six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and (ii) includes the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
of Legacy Berkshire Grey for the six months ended June 30, 2021.

This Amendment No. 1 also includes the unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information of RAAC (as defined in the Original
Report) and Legacy Berkshire Grey as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2021.

 
Item 4.01. Change in Registrant’s Certifying Accountant.

On August 12, 2021, the Audit Committee of the Company’s board of directors approved the Company’s engagement of Grant Thornton
LLP (“Grant Thornton”) as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm to audit the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended December 31, 2021. Grant Thornton served as independent registered public accounting firm of Legacy Berkshire Grey prior to the Business
Combination. Accordingly, the Company informed Marcum LLP (“Marcum”), the independent registered public accounting firm of RAAC prior to the
Business Combination, that it had been dismissed as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm following completion of its review of
the quarter ended June 30, 2021, which consists only of the financial statements of the pre-Business Combination special purpose acquisition company,
RAAC.

During the year period from September 10, 2020 (inception) to December 31, 2020, and the interim period through June 30, 2021, the
Company did not consult Grant Thornton with respect to either (i) the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or
proposed; or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Company’s financial statements, and no written report or oral advice was provided to
the Company that Grant Thornton concluded was an important factor considered by the Company in reaching a decision as to the accounting, auditing or
financial reporting issue; or (ii) any matter that was either the subject of a disagreement, as that term is described in Item 304(a)(1)(iv) of Regulation S-K
under the Exchange Act and the related instructions to Item 304 of Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act, or a reportable event, as that term is defined in
Item 304(a)(1)(v) of Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act.

The report of independent registered public accounting firm of Marcum dated March 17, 2021 except for the effects of the restatement
discussed in Note 2 and the subsequent event discussed in Note 12B as to which the date is May 12, 2021, on the financial statements of RAAC as of
December 31, 2020, and for the period from September 10, 2020 (inception) through December 31, 2020 did not contain any adverse opinion or disclaimer
of opinion, and were not qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles, except that such report contained an explanatory
paragraph as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

During the period from September 10, 2020 (inception) to June 30, 2021, there were no disagreements between the Company and Marcum
on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial disclosure or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the
satisfaction of Marcum, would have caused it to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreements in its reports on the Company’s financial
statements for such period.

During the period from September 10, 2020 (inception) to June 30, 2021, there were no “reportable events” (as defined in Item 304(a)(1)(v)
of Regulation S-K under the Exchange Act), other than the material weakness in internal controls identified by management related to the accounting for
warrants issued in connection with the Company’s initial public offering, which resulted in the restatement of the Company’s financial statements as set
forth in the Company’s Form 10-K/A for the year ended December 31, 2020, as filed with the SEC on May 13, and the classification of our shares of
common stock between temporary and permanent equity in connection with the guidance within “ASC 480: Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity” as it
specifically relates to the impact of our private investment in public equity transactions, which resulted in the restatements of the Company’s financial
statements, as set forth in the Company’s Form 10-Q/A for the quarter period ended March 31, 2021, as filed with the SEC on June 10, 2021.

The Company has provided Marcum with a copy of the foregoing disclosures and has requested that Marcum furnish the Company with a
letter addressed to the SEC stating whether it agrees with the statements made by the Company set forth above. A copy of Marcum’s letter, dated August
16, 2021, is filed as Exhibit 16.1 to this Amendment No. 1.

This Amendment No. 1 does not amend any other item of the Original Report or purport to provide an update or a discussion of any developments at
the Company or its subsidiaries, including Legacy Berkshire Grey, subsequent to the filing date of the Original Report. The information previously
reported in or filed with the Original Report is hereby incorporated by reference to this Form 8-K/A.

 
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.
 

 (a) Financial statements of businesses acquired.

The unaudited consolidated financial statements of Legacy Berkshire Grey as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, and the
related notes thereto, are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.1 and incorporated herein by reference.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of Legacy Berkshire Grey for the six months ended
June 30, 2021 is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.2 and incorporated herein by reference.

 
 (b) Pro forma financial information.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information of the RAAC and Legacy Berkshire Grey as of and for the six months ended
June 30, 2021 is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.3 and is incorporated herein by reference.

 
 (d) Exhibits.
 
Exhibit
Number  Description

16.1   Letter from Marcum LLP, dated August 16, 2021.

99.1   Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of Legacy Berkshire Grey as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

99.2
  

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of Legacy Berkshire Grey for the six months ended
June 30, 2021.

99.3
  

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information of RAAC and Legacy Berkshire Grey for the six months ended June 30,
2021.

104   Cover Page Interactive Data File (embedded within the Inline XBRL document).
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
 

BERKSHIRE GREY, INC.

By:  /s/ Thomas Wagner
Name:  Thomas Wagner
Title:  Chief Executive Officer

Date: August 16, 2021
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Exhibit 16.1
 

August 16, 2021

Office of the Chief Accountant
Securities and Exchange Commission
100 F Street, NE
Washington, D.C. 20549

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have read the statements made by Berkshire Grey, Inc. (formerly Revolution Acceleration Acquisition Corp.) included under Item 4.01 of its Form
8-K dated August 16, 2021. We agree with the statements concerning our Firm under Item 4.01. We are not in a position to agree or disagree with other
statements contained therein.

Very truly yours,

 

Marcum LLP
New York, NY
 



Exhibit 99.1

BERKSHIRE GREY, INC.
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except for share data)

 
   June 30,   December 31, 
   2021   2020  
ASSETS    
Current assets:    

Cash and cash equivalents   $ 52,830  $ 93,857 
Accounts receivable    2,669   16,752 
Inventories, net    2,719   758 
Deferred fulfillment costs (see Note 7 for related party transactions)    13,373   3,461 
Prepaid expenses    2,537   804 
Other current assets    2,091   132 

  

Total current assets    76,219   115,764 
Property and equipment – net    10,466   9,403 
Restricted cash    1,121   1,121 
Deferred transaction costs    1,770   —   
Other non-current assets    24   101 

  

Total assets   $ 89,600  $ 126,389 
  

LIABILITIES, MEZZANINE EQUITY, AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT    
Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable   $ 5,412  $ 1,681 
Accrued expenses    12,339   7,771 
Contract liabilities (see Note 7 for related party transactions)    23,765   22,331 
Other current liabilities    181   182 

  

Total current liabilities    41,697   31,965 
Share-based compensation liability    21,371   3,047 
Other non-current liabilities    1,996   2,057 

  

Total liabilities    65,064   37,069 
  

Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)    
Mezzanine equity:    
Redeemable convertible preferred stock – $0.001 par value; 32,055,463 shares authorized; 28,207,674 shares issued and

outstanding at June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020; aggregate liquidation preference of $239,447 as of June 30, 2021
and December 31, 2020 (Note 8)    223,442   223,442 

Stockholders’ deficit:    
Common stock – $0.001 par value; 44,531,024 shares authorized, 4,814,981 shares issued, and 3,895,473 and 3,623,109

shares outstanding as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, respectively    3   3 
Additional paid-in capital    29,237   17,578 
Accumulated deficit    (228,141)   (151,704) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)    (5)   1 

  

Total stockholders’ deficit    (198,906)   (134,122) 
  

Total liabilities, mezzanine equity, and stockholders’ deficit   $ 89,600  $ 126,389 
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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BERKSHIRE GREY, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except for share data)

 

   
For the Three Months Ended

June 30,   
For the Six Months Ended

June 30,  
   2021   2020   2021   2020  
Revenue (see Note 7 for related party transactions)   $ 4,503  $ 2,752  $ 8,468  $ 29,028 
Cost of revenue (see Note 7 for related party transactions)    5,240   2,658   9,938   27,392 

  

Gross (loss) profit    (737)   94   (1,470)   1,636 
Operating expenses:      
General and administrative expense    4,710   2,877   8,853   6,722 
Sales and marketing expense    10,540   1,667   38,023   3,338 
Research and development expense    15,741   9,163   28,051   17,200 

  

Total operating expenses    30,991   13,707   74,927   27,260 
  

Loss from operations    (31,728)   (13,613)   (76,397)   (25,624) 
Interest income, net    3   8   14   273 
Other (expense) income, net    (22)   3,922   (42)   3,926 

  

Net loss before income taxes    (31,747)   (9,683)   (76,425)   (21,425) 
Income tax    7   —     12   —   

  

Net loss   $ (31,754)  $ (9,683)  $ (76,437)  $ (21,425) 
  

Other comprehensive loss:      
Net foreign currency translation adjustments    —     —     (6)   —   

  

Total comprehensive loss   $ (31,754)  $ (9,683)  $ (76,443)  $ (21,425) 
  

Net loss per common share – basic and diluted   $ (8.21)  $ (2.74)  $ (20.21)  $ (6.07) 
  

Weighted average shares outstanding – basic and diluted    3,868,554   3,532,100   3,781,658   3,528,301 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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BERKSHIRE GREY, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Mezzanine Equity and Stockholders’ Deficit

(Unaudited)
(in thousands, except share data)

 

  
Mezzanine equity

Series A and B   Common stock   
Additional

paid-in   Accumulated  

Accumulated
other

comprehensive  
Total

stockholders’ 
  Shares   Amount   Shares   Amount  capital   deficit   income (loss)   deficit  
Balance – December 31, 2020   28,207,674  $223,442   3,623,109  $ 3  $ 17,578  $ (151,704)  $ 1  $ (134,122) 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   —     —     229,281   —     278   —     —     278 
Stock-based compensation   —     —     —     —     1,165   —     —     1,165 
Other comprehensive loss   —     —     —     —     —     —     (6)   (6) 
Net loss   —     —     —     —     —     (44,683)   —     (44,683) 
Balance – March 31, 2021   28,207,674  $223,442   3,852,390  $ 3  $ 19,021  $ (196,387)  $ (5)  $ (177,368) 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   —     —     43,083   —     217   —     —     217 
Reclassification of restricted stock to equity       8,836     8,836 
Stock-based compensation   —     —     —     —     1,163   —     —     1,163 
Net loss   —     —     —     —     —     (31,754)   —     (31,754) 
Balance – June 30, 2021   28,207,674  $223,442   3,895,473  $ 3  $ 29,237  $ (228,141)  $ (5)  $ (198,906) 

Balance – December 31, 2019   28,207,674  $223,442   3,521,477  $ 3  $ 14,028  $ (94,061)  $ —    $ (80,030) 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   —     —     —     —     32   —     —     32 
Stock-based compensation   —     —     —     —     461   —     —     461 
Net loss   —     —     —     —     —     (11,742)   —     (11,742) 
Balance – March 31, 2020   28,207,674  $223,442   3,521,477  $ 3  $ 14,521  $ (105,803)  $ —    $ (91,279) 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options   —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —   
Stock-based compensation   —     —     —     —     361   —     —     361 
Net loss   —     —     —     —     —     (9,683)   —     (9,683) 
Balance – June 30, 2020   28,207,674  $223,442   3,521,477  $ 3  $ 14,882  $ (115,486)  $ —    $ (100,601) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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BERKSHIRE GREY, INC.
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
(in thousands)

 
   Six Months Ended June 30,  
   2021   2020  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    

Net loss   $ (76,437)  $ (21,425) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities    

Depreciation and amortization    1,217   158 
Loss on disposal of fixed assets    15   —   
Gain on change in fair value of warrants    —     (3,921) 
Gain on foreign currency transactions    37   —   
Stock-based compensation    29,488   1,259 
Change in operating assets and liabilities    

Accounts receivable    14,083   (2,914) 
Inventories    (1,961)   (444) 
Deferred fulfillment costs    (9,912)   17,693 
Prepaid expenses and other assets    (3,729)   (215) 
Accounts payable    3,621   (235) 
Accrued expenses    2,866   (538) 
Contract liabilities    1,434   (25,195) 
Other liabilities    (62)   261 

  

Net cash used in operating activities    (39,340)   (35,516) 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES    

Capital expenditures    (2,139)   (2,114) 
  

Net cash used in investing activities    (2,139)   (2,114) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES    

Proceeds from exercise of stock options    495   32 
  

Net cash provided by financing activities    495   32 
Effect of exchange rate on cash    (43)   —   

  

Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash    (41,027)   (37,598) 
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at beginning of period    94,978   159,448 

  

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at end of period   $ 53,951  $ 121,850 
  

NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES    
Purchase of property and equipment included in accounts payable and accrued expenses   $ 156  $ 1,127 

  

Deferred transaction costs not yet paid included in accrued expenses   $ 1,656  $ —   
  

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited consolidated financial statements.
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BERKSHIRE GREY, INC.
NOTES TO THE CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Unaudited)

1. NATURE OF THE BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Nature of Business

Berkshire Grey, Inc. (“Berkshire Grey,” “we,” “us,” “our,” or the “Company”) is a development stage Intelligent Enterprise Robotics (“IER”)
company incorporated in 2013. The Company is based in Bedford, MA and has approximately 350 employees.

Berkshire Grey is a robotics and artificial intelligence company delivering automation solutions to global retail, e-commerce, and logistics
companies. The Company helps customers change the way they do business by combining artificial intelligence and robotics to automate commerce
fulfillment. The Company’s solutions automate key fulfilment processes including pick, pack, and sort operations in customer warehouses and fulfillment
centers.

On July, 21, 2021 the Company consummated the transactions contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”), dated
February 23, 2021, by and among the Company, Revolution Acceleration Acquisition Corp. (“RAAC”), and Pickup Merger Corp, a Delaware corporation
and a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of RAAC (“Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, RAAC amended and restated its second amended
and restated certificate of incorporation and its bylaws such that RAAC changed its name to “Berkshire Grey, Inc.”. Refer to Note 1 “Merger Agreement”
and Note 14 “Subsequent Events” for further details.

Basis of Presentation

The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements reflect the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of Berkshire Grey,
Inc. The accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements include those of Berkshire Grey and its subsidiaries, after elimination of all
intercompany balances and transactions. The Company prepared the accompanying unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”). The information included in these unaudited condensed
consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included
in the Registration Statement filed by Revolution Acceleration Acquisition Corp. (“RAAC”) on Form S-4 for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2020
and 2019. The unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared on the same basis as the audited consolidated financial statements
and, in the opinion of management, reflect all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring accruals) considered necessary to present fairly the Company’s
financial position, results of operations and cash flows for the periods and dates presented. Interim results are not necessarily indicative of results for the
full fiscal year or any future periods.

For the Company’s subsidiaries that transact in a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar, assets and liabilities are translated into U.S. dollars
at period-end foreign exchange rates. Revenues and expenses are translated into U.S. dollars at the average foreign exchange rates for the period.
Translation adjustments are excluded from the determination of net income and are recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), a separate
component of stockholders’ deficit.

Merger Agreement

On February 23, 2021, the Company entered into the Merger Agreement, by and among the Company, RAAC, and Merger Sub, which provides for,
among other things, the merger of Merger Sub with and into the Company, with the Company being the surviving corporation of the merger and a direct,
wholly owned subsidiary of RAAC as a consequence of the merger (the “Merger” and, together with the other transactions contemplated by the Merger
Agreement, the “RAAC Business Combination”). The Merger Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereby were unanimously approved by the
board of directors of the Company on February 23, 2021 and by the board of directors of RAAC.

Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, the consideration to be paid in respect of each share of common stock, par value
$0.001 per share, of the Company (“Berkshire Grey Common Stock”) issued and outstanding (other than (i) any such shares held in the treasury of the
Company and (ii) any shares held by stockholders of the Company who have perfected and not withdrawn a demand for appraisal rights) immediately
prior to the effective time of the Merger will be a number of shares of newly issued Class A common stock of RAAC (with each share valued at $10.00),
par value $0.0001 per share (“Class A Stock”), equal to (x) $2,250,000,000 divided by (y) the number of shares of Aggregate Fully Diluted Company
Stock (as defined in the Merger Agreement). Immediately prior to the closing of the RAAC Business Combination (the “Closing”), all of the outstanding
shares of each series of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, of the Company (“Berkshire Grey Preferred Stock”) will be converted into shares of
Berkshire Grey Common Stock.
 

5



1. NATURE OF THE BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont.)
 

At the Closing, each outstanding option to acquire Berkshire Grey Common Stock and each award of restricted Berkshire Grey Common Stock will
be converted into the right to receive an option relating to shares of RAAC Class A Stock and an award of restricted shares of RAAC Class A Stock, as
applicable, upon substantially the same terms and conditions, including with respect to vesting and termination-related provisions, as existed prior to the
Closing, except that the number of shares underlying such option and the exercise price and the number of shares subject to restricted stock awards, in
each case, shall be determined as set forth in the Merger Agreement.

Each Company, RAAC and Merger Sub, have made representations, warranties and covenants that are customary for a transaction of this nature. The
representations and warranties contained in the Merger Agreement terminate and are of no further force or effect as of the Closing.

The Merger Agreement contains additional covenants of the parties, including, among others, covenants providing for (a) the parties to conduct their
respective businesses in the ordinary course through the Closing, subject to certain exceptions, (b) the Company and RAAC to cease discussions regarding
alternative transactions, (c) RAAC to prepare with the Company’s cooperation and to file with the SEC a registration statement on Form S-4 in connection
with the registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), of the shares of RAAC Class A Stock issued in the Merger (the
“Registration Statement”), (d) RAAC to prepare with the Company’s cooperation and to file with the SEC a proxy statement as part of the Registration
Statement soliciting proxies from the Company’s stockholders to vote in favor of approval of the Merger Agreement, the transactions contemplated
thereby and certain other matters in connection with the RAAC Business Combination at a RAAC stockholders’ meeting called therefor and (e) the parties
providing required notice under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended (the “HSR Act”).

In connection with the Closing, RAAC will amend and restate its second amended and restated certificate of incorporation and its bylaws such that
RAAC will (i) change its name to “Berkshire Grey, Inc.” and (ii) have a board of directors initially consisting of up to thirteen (13) directors, with one
director nominee designated by RAAC and up to twelve (12) director nominees to be mutually agreed by RAAC and the Company.

The consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement is subject to customary closing conditions for special purpose
acquisition companies, including, among others: (a) approval of the Berkshire Grey Business Combination by the company’s stockholders and RAAC’s
stockholders, (b) the Registration Statement being deemed effective (c) RAAC having at least $5,000,001 of net tangible assets, (d) the expiration or
termination of the waiting period under the HSR Act, (e) the approval for listing on The Nasdaq Stock Market LLC of the shares of RAAC Class A Stock
to be issued in connection with the Merger, and (f) as a condition to the Company’s obligations to consummate the Berkshire Grey Business Combination,
the RAAC having at least $200,000,000 in available cash, after taking into account payments required to satisfy RAAC’s stockholder redemptions and the
net proceeds from the PIPE Investment (as defined below).

The Merger Agreement may be terminated under certain customary and limited circumstances prior to the Closing, including (a) by mutual written
consent of the parties, (b) by either the Company or RAAC if a final and non-appealable order has been issued or governmental action that permanently
makes consummation of the transactions illegal or otherwise prevents or prohibits the Berkshire Grey Business Combination, (c) by the Company (i) if
RAAC’s stockholders do not vote to approve the Berkshire Grey Business Combination at RAAC’s stockholders’ meeting convened for such purpose,
(ii) upon a breach by RAAC or Merger Sub that gives rise to a failure of a closing condition that cannot be cured or has not been cured within 30 days’
notice and RAAC continues to use its reasonable best efforts to cure, or (iii) if the Berkshire Grey Business Combination is not consummated by
August 23, 2021 (the “Outside Date”), unless the Company is in material breach of the Merger Agreement, and (d) by the RAAC (i) if approval by the
Company’s stockholders is not obtained within two business days of the Registration Statement being declared effective by the SEC and delivered or
otherwise made available to stockholders, (ii) upon a breach by the Company that gives rise to a failure of a closing condition that cannot be cured or has
not been cured within 30 days’ notice and the Company continues its reasonable best efforts to cure, or (iii) if the Berkshire Grey Business Combination is
not consummated by the Outside Date, unless RAAC is in material breach of the Merger Agreement.

Subscription Agreements

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, RAAC entered into subscription agreements (the “Subscription Agreements”) with
certain investors (the “PIPE Investors”), pursuant to which the PIPE Investors have committed to purchase an aggregate amount of $165,000,000 in shares
of Class A Stock at a purchase price of $10.00 per share, substantially concurrent with, and contingent upon, the Closing (the “PIPE Investment”).
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1. NATURE OF THE BUSINESS AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION (cont.)
 

The Subscription Agreements for the PIPE Investors provide for certain registration rights. In particular, RAAC is required to, within 30 calendar
days following the Closing, file with the SEC a registration statement registering the resale of the securities issued pursuant to the Subscription
Agreements. Additionally, RAAC is required to use its commercially reasonable efforts to have such registration statement declared effective as soon as
practicable after the filing thereof, but no later than the earlier of (i) the 90th calendar day following the filing date thereof and (ii) the 10th business day
after the date RAAC is notified (orally or in writing, whichever is earlier) by the SEC that the registration statement will not be “reviewed” or will not be
subject to further review.

Each Subscription Agreement will terminate with no further force and effect upon the earliest to occur of: (a) such date and time as the Merger
Agreement is terminated in accordance with its terms; (b) the mutual written agreement of the parties to such Subscription Agreement; (c) if any of the
conditions to closing set forth in the Subscription Agreements are not satisfied on or prior to the closing of the PIPE Investment and, as a result thereof, the
transactions contemplated by such Subscription Agreement fail to occur; and (d) if the consummation of the Berkshire Grey Business Combination has not
occurred by the Outside Date.

Liquidity

The Company incurred net losses and negative cash flows from operations for the six months ended June 30, 2021, and historically relied upon
financing activities to fund operations. As described in Note 8, as of June 30, 2021 the Company raised approximately $227.3 million, net of issuance
costs, from the issuance of preferred stock and warrants. Management believes the capital raised, in combination with the transaction proceeds discussed in
Note 14, will be sufficient to fund its current operations, projected working capital requirements, and capital spending for a period beyond the next 12
months.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions which
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. These estimates and judgments include, but are not limited to, revenue recognition
(including performance obligations, variable consideration and other obligations such as product returns); realizability of deferred fulfillment costs,
inventory, and warranty; accounting for stock-based compensation including performance-based assessments; and accounting for income taxes and related
valuation allowances. Actual results may differ from estimates.

Cash Equivalents and Restricted Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company’s cash
equivalents consist of money market funds. Restricted cash represents cash on deposit with a financial institution as collateral for the Company’s corporate
credit cards and an irrevocable standby letter of credit as security for the Company’s obligations under the lease for its headquarters in Massachusetts.

The Company has included restricted cash as a non-current asset as of the six months then ended June 30, 2021 and 2020. A reconciliation of the
amounts of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash from the consolidated cash flow statements to the consolidated balance sheets is as follows:
 

   June 30,    June 30,  
   2021    2020  
   (in thousands)  
Cash   $ 1,334   $ 2,578 
Money Market funds in Cash and Cash Equivalents    51,496    118,151 
Restricted cash    1,121    1,121 

    

Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash   $53,951   $121,850 
    

Concentration of Credit Risk and Significant Customers

Financial instruments which potentially expose the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist of accounts receivable and cash and cash
equivalents.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
 

Sales of the Company’s products are concentrated among specific customers. At June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, five and three customers
accounted for 100% of the Company’s accounts receivable balance, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, the Company
generated 100% of revenues from five significant customers. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, the Company generated approximately
100% of revenues from two and three significant customers, respectively. The Company believes that credit risks associated with these contracts are not
significant due to the customers’ financial strength.

The Company places cash and cash equivalents with high-quality financial institutions. The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of default
by these institutions to the extent the amount recorded on the consolidated balance sheets exceeds federally insured limits.

Deferred Transaction Costs and Transaction Costs Payable

As part of the transaction with RAAC, the Company has accrued direct and incremental transaction costs related to the merger which will be
deducted from the combined entity’s additional paid-in capital at the closing of the transaction when the proceeds are received.

As of June 30, 2021, the Company had recorded $1.8 million of transaction costs payable to advisers, which is reported as a non-current asset on the
consolidated balance sheet.

Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the loss available to common shareholders (numerator) by the weighted average number of shares outstanding
(denominator) during the period. Diluted income per share is calculated using the Company’s weighted-average outstanding common shares including the
dilutive effect of stock awards as determined under the treasury stock method and convertible Preferred Stock using the if-converted method. Diluted EPS
excludes all dilutive potential shares if their effect is antidilutive.

For the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, restricted stock awards and stock options representing approximately 5.7 million and 4.1 million
shares of common stock, respectively, and convertible preferred shares representing approximately 28.2 million shares of common stock were excluded
from the computation of diluted earnings per share as their effect would have been antidilutive. Accordingly, basic and diluted net loss per share are the
same for both periods.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). This guidance requires a dual approach for lessee accounting under which a
lessee will account for leases as finance leases or operating leases. This guidance is effective for the Company for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2021 and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2022, and early adoption is permitted. This standard can be applied at the beginning
of the earliest period presented using the modified retrospective approach, which includes certain practical expedients that an entity may elect to apply,
including an election to use certain transition relief. In July 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-10, Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases and
ASU 2018-11, Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements, which make improvements to ASC 842 and allow entities to not restate comparative periods
in transition to ASC 842 and instead report the comparative periods under ASC 840. The Company is currently assessing the impact that adoption of this
ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13, Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments. This ASU amends the impairment model by
requiring entities to use a forward-looking approach based on expected losses rather than incurred losses to estimate credit losses on certain types of
financial instruments. This may result in the earlier recognition of allowances for losses. The guidance is effective for the Company for fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this ASU to have a significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

In December 2019, the FASB issued ASU 2019-12, Income Taxes — Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes. The ASU simplifies the
accounting for income taxes by removing certain exceptions to the general principles as well as clarifying and amending existing guidance to improve
consistent application. The amendments to this ASU are effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after
December 15, 2021, with early adoption permitted. Depending on the amendment, adoption may be applied on the retrospective, modified retrospective or
prospective basis. The Company is currently assessing the impact that adoption of this ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.
 

8



2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont.)
 
Initial Adoption of New Accounting Policies

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13, Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework — Changes to the Disclosure
Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. This ASU eliminates, modifies, and adds disclosure requirements for fair value measurements. The
amendments in this ASU are effective for the Company for fiscal years, and for interim periods within those fiscal years, beginning after December 15,
2019, with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted this ASU as of January 1, 2020. The adoption of the ASU did not have a material impact on
the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

3. INVENTORIES, net

Inventories consist of the following:
 

   June 30,   December 31, 
   2021    2020  
   (in thousands)  
Work in progress   $ 13   $ 3 
Finished goods    2,706    755 

    

Inventory, net   $ 2,719   $ 758 
    

4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Property and equipment consist of the following:
 

   June 30,    December 31, 
   2021    2020  
   (in thousands)  
Leasehold improvements   $ 6,224   $ 5,907 
Machinery and equipment    10    15 
Furniture and fixtures    784    714 
Research and development equipment    4,679    2,794 
Computer hardware and software    1,513    1,219 
Construction in progress    93    437 

    

Subtotal    13,303    11,086 
Less: Accumulated depreciation    2,837    1,683 

    

Property and equipment, net   $10,466   $ 9,403 
    

Depreciation expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 was approximately $0.7 million and $1.2 million, respectively. Depreciation
expense for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020 was approximately $0.8 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

5. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses consist of the following:
 

   June 30,    December 31, 
   2021    2020  
   (in thousands)  
Accrued compensation   $ 3,871   $ 5,424 
Accrued sales taxes payable    185    879 
Accrued professional services    2,045    754 
Accrued materials    4,077    401 
Accrued other    2,049    272 
Accrued warranty    112    41 

    

Accrued expenses   $12,339   $ 7,771 
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5. ACCRUED EXPENSES (cont.)
 
Accrued Warranty

The Company provides a limited warranty ranging from one to three years. Estimated warranty obligations are recorded as an expense upon
customer acceptance of related products. Factors that affect the estimated warranty liability include number of products accepted, historical and anticipated
rates of warranty claims, cost per claim, and vendor-supported warranty programs. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of our recorded
warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary. The amount of liability recorded is equal to the estimated costs to repair or otherwise satisfy
claims made by customers.

Changes in our product warranty consist of the following:
 

   June 30,   December 31, 
   2021    2020  
   (in thousands)  
Beginning balance   $ 41   $ 317 
Accrual (reversal) for warranty expense    107    (136) 
Warranty costs incurred during period    (36)    (140) 

    

Ending balance   $ 112   $ 41 
    

6. REVENUE

The Company primarily derives its revenue from selling robotic fulfillment and material handling systems, which consist of a network of automated
machinery installed at the customer location and configured to meet specified performance requirements, such as accuracy, throughput and up-time.
Revenue is recognized when control of the promised products is transferred to the customer, or when services are satisfied under the contract, in an amount
that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those products or services (the transaction price). Revenue is
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur. Taxes collected from customers, which are
subsequently remitted to governmental authorities, are excluded from revenue.

The Company’s contracts typically have multiple performance obligations that may include system delivery, installation, testing, and training.
Judgment is required to determine whether performance obligations specified in these contracts are distinct and should be accounted for as separate
revenue transactions for recognition purposes. The Company also provides assurance-based warranties that are not considered a distinct performance
obligation. The Company allocates the total transaction price to each performance obligation in an amount based on the estimated relative standalone
selling prices of the promised goods or services underlying each performance obligation. The Company uses a cost-plus margin approach to determine the
stand-alone selling price for separate performance obligations.

Each customer contract is evaluated individually to determine the appropriate pattern of revenue recognition. Contracts that are recognized over time
meet the criteria that the Company is creating or enhancing an asset that the customer controls. The system is delivered to the customer and control is
transferred, after which point the Company performs installation and implementation services to fully integrate the system at the customer’s location. As
such, revenue recognition begins upon delivery, continues throughout the installation and implementation period, and concludes upon customer
acceptance. Revenue from customer contracts is generally expected to be recognized over a period of three to six months. There historically have been,
and potentially will be in the future, customer contracts that contain obligations and timelines that result in revenue being recognized over extended
periods, which may include periods greater than 12 months. The Company typically uses total estimated labor hours as the input to measure progress as
labor hours represent work performed, which corresponds with, and thereby best depicts, the transfer of control to the customer. Installation and training
services are evaluated together with the delivery of robotic fulfillment or material handling systems as a singular performance obligation.

The Company determined that the revenue of one of its robotic fulfillment system contracts should be recognized at a point in time as the contract
did not meet any of the three criteria to recognize revenue over time as defined in ASC 606-10-25-27 due to the terms within the contract. Obligations
under this contract were fulfilled in March 2020 and the Company determined no similar contracts exist as of June 30, 2021 or December 31, 2020.

Other performance obligations recognized at a point in time include the sale and delivery of spare parts and pilot agreements. Pilot agreements are
typically short-term contracts designed to demonstrate the Company’s technology and ability to serve the customer. Due to the exploratory nature of pilot
agreements, revenue is recognized at a point in time once the evaluation activities are complete.
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6. REVENUE (cont.)
 

Other performance obligations recognized over time include, but are not limited to, maintenance, extended support, and research services, which are
recognized ratably on a straight-line-basis as the Company assumes an even distribution of performance over the service period.

Shipping and handling activities that occur after control of a product has transferred to the customer are accounted for as fulfillment activities rather
than performance obligations, as allowed under a practical expedient provided by ASC 606. Shipping and handling fees charged to customers are
recognized as revenue and the related costs are included in cost of revenue at the point in time when ownership of the product is transferred to the
customer.

The following table disaggregates revenue by timing of transfer of goods or services:
 

   Three Months Ended June 30,    Six Months Ended June 30,  
   2021    2020    2021    2020  
   (in thousands)    (in thousands)  
Transferred over time   $ 4,275   $ 2,535   $ 8,211   $ 6,465 
Transferred at a point in time    228    217    257    22,563 

        

Total revenue   $ 4,503   $ 2,752   $ 8,468   $ 29,028 
        

Payment terms offered to customers are defined in contracts and do not include a significant financing component. Payment milestones typically
exist throughout the course of a contract and generally occur upon signing of an agreement, delivery of a system, start and completion of installation and
testing, and upon acceptance of the system. The nature of the Company’s contracts may give rise to variable consideration, typically related to fees
charged for shipping and handling. The Company generally estimates such variable consideration at the most likely amount. In addition, the Company
includes the estimated variable consideration in the transaction price to the extent that it is probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized will not occur when the related uncertainty is resolved. These estimates are based on historical experience and the Company’s best
judgment at the time. Because of the certainty in estimating these amounts, they are included in the transaction price of the Company’s contracts and the
associated remaining performance obligations. The Company does not disclose the value of unsatisfied performance obligations for contracts with an
original expected duration of one year or less.

Contracts may be modified to account for changes in contract specifications and requirements. Contract modifications exist when the modification
either creates new or changes the existing enforceable rights and obligations. Most of the Company’s contract modifications are for goods or services that
are not distinct from the existing contract due to the significant integration service provided in the context of the contract and are accounted for as if they
were part of that existing contract. The effects of a contract modification on the transaction price, and the measure of progress for the performance
obligation to which it relates, are recognized as an adjustment to revenue on a cumulative catch-up basis.

Deferred Fulfillment Costs and Contract Balances

As of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company incurred $13.4 million and $3.5 million of net deferred fulfillment costs, respectively.

Changes in the contract liability balance during the six months ended June 30, 2021 were due to the Company receiving additional advanced cash
payments from customer contracts and the Company recognizing revenue as performance obligations were met. The following table summarizes changes
in contract liabilities during the six months ended June 30, 2021:
 

   Contract Liabilities 
   (in thousands)  
Contract liabilities at December 31, 2020   $ 22,331 

  

Additions to contract liabilities during the period    9,728 
Revenue recognized in the period from:   

Amounts included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the
period    (7,084) 

Amounts added to contract liabilities during the period    (1,210) 
  

Contract liabilities at June 30, 2021   $ 23,765 
  

There were no significant contract asset balances for all periods presented.
 

11



7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In June 2019, the Company entered into two customer contracts with an affiliate of one of its primary investors. Related to these contracts, as of
June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020, the Company recorded $0.5 million and $1.4 million in net deferred fulfillment costs, respectively, and
$1.4 million and $4.6 million in contract liabilities, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, the Company recognized
approximately $1.5 million and $3.1 million in revenue and approximately $0.4 million and $1.2 million in cost of revenue related to these customer
contracts, respectively. For the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, the Company recognized approximately $2.4 million and $6.2 million in
revenue and approximately $1.1 million and $2.7 million in cost of revenue related to these customer contracts, respectively.                

In October 2019, the Company issued a Partial Recourse Secured Promissory Note (the “Promissory Note”) to an executive officer for
approximately $9.9 million with an interest rate of 1.86% per annum compounded annually. Under the terms of the Promissory Note, the officer will be
personally liable for 51% of the unpaid balance of the principal and any accrued interest. The entire principal amount was used to purchase 1,191,872
shares of restricted stock. The Promissory Note is collateralized by the restricted common stock. The Company determined that the entire Promissory Note
must be treated as non-recourse; as such, the balance of the note and related accrued interest are not presented on the consolidated balance sheet. Refer to
Note 9 for further information on the treatment of stock-based compensation related to these purchased shares.

On February 23, 2021 the Company entered into a Stock Repurchase Agreement with the executive officer. In the Stock Repurchase Agreement, the
Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of a sufficient number of vested shares of common stock from the executive officer, at a per
share price equal to the per share price as defined in the Merger Agreement. The sale and repurchase will repay in full all of the outstanding principal and
accrued interest under the Promissory Note and is contingent upon the completion of the business combination. Refer to Note 14 “Subsequent Events” for
further details.

8. CONVERTIBLE PREFERRED STOCK

Preferred Stock

The Company has cumulatively raised $227.3 million, net of issuance costs, in venture financing through the sale and issuance of Preferred Stock
and warrants as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020. The following table summarizes details of Convertible Preferred Stock authorized, issued and
outstanding, and liquidation preference:
 

   June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020  
   Convertible preferred stock  

   
Authorized

shares    

Shares issued
and

outstanding    
Liquidation
preference  

Series A    2,212,389    2,212,389   $ 500 
Series A-1    2,403,846    2,403,846    2,500 
Series A-2    4,118,126    4,118,126    11,098 
Series A-3    785,056    785,056    1,058 
Series A-4    710,321    710,321    1,531 
Series B    5,385,474    5,385,474    24,100 
Series B-1    2,804,302    2,804,302    24,110 
Series B-2    11,732,302    9,788,160    174,550 
Series B-3    1,903,647    —      —   

      

   32,055,463    28,207,674   $ 239,447 
      

Warrants

In connection with the Series B-2 Preferred Stock financing in 2019, the Company issued a Warrant to purchase up to 1,903,647 shares of Series B-3
Preferred Stock (the “Warrants”) at an exercise price of $11.5913 per share. See Note 10 for additional information regarding the valuation of the
Warrants.

On February 23, 2021 in conjunction with the Merger Agreement, the Company entered into a Warrant Termination Agreement with the Warrant
holder. Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Warrant is to be surrendered, terminated and cancelled immediately prior to, and contingent
upon, the completion of the business combination. Refer to Note 14 “Subsequent Events” for further details.
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9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In 2013, the Company adopted the Berkshire Grey, Inc. 2013 Stock Option and Stock Purchase Plan (the “Plan”) under which the Company may
grant incentive stock options, nonqualified stock options, restricted stock, unrestricted stock, restricted stock units, performance awards, or other awards
that are convertible into or based on company stock. The maximum number of shares that may be issued under the Plan was 10,017,823 shares as of
June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020. Shares underlying any award that are forfeited, expired, or repurchased will again be available for grant and
issuance in connection with future awards under this Plan.

Stock-based compensation expense recognized for all stock-based awards is reported in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations as
follows:
 

   Three Months Ended June 30,    Six Months Ended June 30,  
   2021    2020    2021    2020  
   (in thousands)    (in thousands)  
Cost of sales   $ 35   $ 28   $ 70   $ 56 
General and administrative    430    (17)    856    494 
Sales and marketing    4,549    65    27,961    233 
Research and development    295    240    601    476 

        

Total   $ 5,309   $ 316   $ 29,488   $ 1,259 
        

Stock Options

The Company did not issue any grants during the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020.

The following table summarizes stock option activity under the 2013 Plan for the six months ended June 30, 2021:
 

   Options    

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price   

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual
Term (years) 

Outstanding at December 31, 2020    5,956,837   $ 4.70    8.0 
      

Exercised    272,364    1.82    2.9 
Cancelled    4,596    3.65    —   
Forfeited    59,055    3.59    —   

      

Outstanding at June 30, 2021    5,620,822   $ 4.85    7.8 
      

Exercisable at June 30, 2021    2,342,488   $ 2.71    6.1 
      

Vested or expected to vest at June 30, 2021    5,620,822   $ 4.85    7.8 
      

As of June 30, 2021, 633,656 of the Options outstanding are subject to performance-based vesting criteria described above.

The total intrinsic value of options exercised in the six months ended June 30, 2021 was approximately $15.5 million.

The Company recognized approximately $1.2 million and $2.4 million in stock-based compensation expense related to stock options during the
three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively. The Company recognized approximately $0.3 million and $0.8 million in stock-based
compensation expense related to stock options during the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, respectively. As of June 30, 2021, there was
approximately $12.7 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested stock options. The total unrecognized compensation cost will
be adjusted for future forfeitures as they occur. As of June 30, 2021, the Company expects to recognize its remaining stock-based compensation expense
over a weighted-average period of 2.9 years.

Restricted Stock Sold Through Issuance of Promissory Note

In conjunction with a Partial Recourse Promissory Note issued in October 2019 (See Note 7), the Company also entered into a Restricted Stock
Award Agreement with an executive officer (the “RSA Agreement”). Pursuant to the RSA Agreement, the Company granted 1,191,872 shares of common
stock (the “Restricted Stock”) at a purchase price of $8.32 per share. The Restricted Stock was purchased by the executive officer with the proceeds from
the Promissory Note. As the underlying Restricted Shares are not allocated to the recourse and non-recourse portions of the Promissory Note, the entire
note is treated as non-recourse and the shares are treated as options for accounting purposes.
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9. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION (cont.)
 

The RSA Agreement contains a Repurchase Option, which causes the shares to be classified as a liability. The Repurchase Option expires six
months after the shares’ respective vesting date, at which point the shares will be reclassified as equity at the fair value on such date and no further
compensation cost is recognized. A portion of the awards are subject to performance-based vesting conditions based primarily on financial performance of
the Company and a portion are only subject to time and service-based vesting conditions over a four-year period. The Company will remeasure the fair
value of the award at each reporting period until settlement. The Company measured compensation cost for the shares (in-substance stock options) based
on the fair value on the grant date using a lattice-based option pricing model. The Company recognizes compensation cost over the requisite service period
with an offsetting credit to a share-based liability.

The underlying shares of Restricted Stock are not considered outstanding until the vesting conditions have been achieved and the Promissory Note
has been paid. As of June 30, 2021, 248,307 shares of Restricted Stock have vested, and none were forfeited.

The Company recognized approximately $4.2 million and $27.2 million in stock-based compensation expense related to the Restricted Stock during
the three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively. The Company recognized approximately $(0.1) million and $0.4 million in stock-based
compensation expense related to the Restricted Stock during the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, respectively. The expense is presented in the
Company’s consolidated statements of operations as sales and marketing expense and general and administrative expense, respectively. As of June 30,
2021, there was approximately $30.5 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to the Restricted Stock.

10. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Recurring Fair Value Measurements

The following table summarizes information about the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis and
indicates the level of the fair value hierarchy used to determine such fair values:
 

   June 30, 2021  
   Level 1    Level 2   Level 3    Total  
   (in thousands)  
Assets         
Money Market funds in Cash and Cash Equivalents   $51,496   $ —     $ —     $51,496 

        

Total Assets   $51,496   $ —     $ —     $51,496 
        

Liabilities         
Restricted Stock   $ —     $ —     $21,371   $21,371 

        

Total Liabilities   $ —     $ —     $21,371   $21,371 
        

 
   December 31, 2020  
   Level 1    Level 2   Level 3    Total  
   (in thousands)  
Assets         
Money Market funds in Cash and Cash Equivalents   $92,858   $ —     $ —     $92,858 

        

Total Assets   $92,858   $ —     $ —     $92,858 
        

Liabilities         
Restricted Stock   $ —     $ —     $3,047   $ 3,047 

        

Total Liabilities   $ —     $ —     $3,047   $ 3,047 
        

Money market funds were valued by the Company using quoted prices in active markets for similar securities, which represent a Level 1
measurement within the fair value hierarchy.

The values for the restricted stock liability are based on significant inputs not observable in the market, which represent Level 3 measurements
within the fair value hierarchy.

During the six months ended June 30, 2021, there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3.
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10. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont.)
 
Warrants to Purchase Series B-3 Preferred Stock

On July 5, 2019, in connection with the Series B-2 Preferred Stock financing, the Company issued a Warrant to purchase up to 1,903,647 shares of
Series B-3 Preferred Stock at an exercise price of $11.5913 per share. The Warrants expire 10 years from the date of issuance and are exercisable for
Vested Shares at any time up until the earlier of either the Expiration Date or the occurrence of a Deemed Liquidation Event.

The Warrants were accounted for as liabilities under ASC 480 because the underlying shares are contingently redeemable outside of the issuer’s
control. The Warrants are considered freestanding financial instruments as they are separately exercisable and could be separately transferred from the
Series B-2 Preferred Stock in the related financing. Such warrant instruments were initially recorded and valued as a Level 3 liability and are accounted
for at fair value with changes in fair value reported as a component of other income.

As of June 30, 2020, Management determined, upon evaluation of performance milestones that the vesting of the Warrants was not probable. As
such, the Warrants were revalued at $0 as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020. In addition, pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the
Warrants are to be surrendered, terminated and cancelled immediately prior to, and contingent upon, the completion of the business combination.

Restricted Stock Awards

Changes in fair value will be recorded as compensation cost with a corresponding increase or decrease in the share-based liability. No restricted
stock awards were exercised during the six months ended June 30, 2021.

The following table summarizes the change in fair value, as determined by Level 3 inputs, of restricted stock for the six months ended June 30,
2021.
 

   
Restricted

Stock  
   (in thousands) 
Balance at December 31, 2020   $ 3,047 
Change relating to vesting at original issuance price    775 
Change in fair value    26,385 
Reclassification of restricted stock to equity (see Note 9)    (8,836) 

  

Balance at June 30, 2021    21,371 
  

The fair value of the Company’s Restricted Stock, including subsequent remeasurements, was estimated using an option pricing model using the
following assumptions as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020:
 

   June 30,  December 31,
   2021  2020
Fair Value of the underlying Instrument   $58.60  $6.70 - 13.01
Exercise Price   $9.31 - $9.48  $9.23 - $9.48
Time to liquidity event (in years)   6.1 - 7.1  5.6 - 7.1
Average volatility rate   55.0%  55.0%
Risk-free interest rate   0.93% - 1.27% 0.28% - 0.93%

The risk-free interest rate used is the rate for a U.S. Treasury zero coupon issue with a term consistent with the remaining contractual term of the
restricted stock on the date of measurement. The Company based the expected term assumption on the actual remaining contractual term of the respective
restricted stock as of the date of measurement. The expected volatility is based on historical volatilities from guideline companies, since there is no active
market for the Company’s common stock. The exercise price is calculated based on a function of the purchase price of $8.32 per share multiplied by a
compounding interest rate over the expected term consistent with the repayment term of the Promissory Note. As of December 31, 2020, the fair value on
the date of measurement of the common stock, the underlying instrument, was estimated by management with the assistance of a third-party valuation
specialist.
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10. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont.)
 

As a result of the pending merger with RAAC, management determined that the fair value of the common stock, the underlying instrument, should
approximate the fair value of RAAC’s common stock as of the date of measurement and resulted in compensation expense of approximately $4.2 million
and $27.2 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021. As a result of the pending merger with RAAC, management determined that the fair
value of the common stock, the underlying instrument, should approximate the fair value of RAAC’s common stock as of the date of measurement on
June 30, 2021. Each unit of Restricted Stock can be exchanged for a single share of Berkshire Grey common stock. Upon the effective date of the merger,
any shares held by stockholders of Berkshire Grey will be cancelled and converted into the right to receive a number of newly issued shares of RAAC
Class A common stock based on a conversion formula as defined in the Merger Agreement. The Company calculated the conversion ratio based on this
formula with inputs known as of June 30, 2021 and applied this ratio to the closing price of RAAC’s current common stock on June 30, 2021 in order to
determine the fair value price of a share of the underlying instrument.

11. INCOME TAXES

During the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, the Company recorded no income tax benefits due to the losses incurred and the uncertainty
of future taxable income.

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income. As required by ASC 740 Income Taxes, the Company
evaluated the positive and negative evidence bearing upon its ability to realize the deferred tax assets as of June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020. As the
Company has incurred tax losses from inception, the Company determined that it was more likely than not that the Company would not realize the
benefits of federal and state net deferred tax assets. Accordingly, a full valuation allowance was established against the net deferred tax assets as of
June 30, 2021 and December 31, 2020.

The Company does not believe material uncertain tax positions have arisen to date.

The Company’s effective income tax rate for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was 0.0%.

On March 27, 2020, the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (“CARES Act”) was enacted in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
The Company continues to evaluate the impact of the CARES Act, but at present does not expect the CARES Act to result in any material income tax
benefit.

12. SEGMENT INFORMATION

In its operation of the business, management, including our chief operating decision maker, who is also our Chief Executive Officer, reviews the
business as one segment. The Company currently ships its products to markets in the United States and Japan. Product sales attributed to a country are
based on the location of the customer to whom the products are being sold. Long-lived assets are primarily held in the United States.

Product sales by country are as follows:
 

   Three Months Ended June 30,    Six Months Ended June 30,  
   2021    2020    2021    2020  
   (in thousands)    (in thousands)  
United States   $ 2,929   $ 292   $ 5,334   $ 22,792 
Japan    1,574    2,460    3,134    6,236 

        

Total revenue   $ 4,503   $ 2,752   $ 8,468   $ 29,028 
        

13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company has various non-cancellable operating leases for facilities that expire at various dates through 2031.

Rental expense was approximately $0.5 million and $1.0 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Rental
expense was approximately $0.4 million and $1.0 million for the three and six months ended June 30, 2020, respectively.
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13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (cont.)
 

As of June 30, 2021, future minimum rental commitments for operating leases with non-cancellable terms in excess of one year were as follows:
 

   
Operating

Leases  
   (in thousands) 
Remainder of 2021   $ 1,052 
2022    1,601 
2023    1,462 
2024    1,504 
2025    1,473 
Thereafter    7,079 

  

  $ 14,171 
  

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company evaluated subsequent events and transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date up to [the date that the financial statements
were issued]. Based upon this review, other than as described below, the Company did not identify any subsequent events that would have required
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements.

RAAC Business Combination

Merger

On July 21, 2021, the Company completed a business combination transaction (the “Merger”) with RAAC pursuant to the business combination
agreement (the “Merger Agreement”) dated February 23, 2021. Upon closing of the business combination transaction, the combined company was
renamed Berkshire Grey, Inc.

Closing occurred on July 21, 2021 (the “Closing Date”). The transaction was accounted for as a reverse recapitalization. The Company received
gross proceeds of $220.0 million and incurred closing costs of $27.4 million. As of June 30, 2021, $1.8 million of deferred transaction costs were
recorded, which consisted of legal, accounting, and other professional services directly related to the Merger. These costs were included in non-current
assets on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet. These costs will be offset against proceeds upon accounting for the Closing.

PIPE Investment

Concurrently with the execution of the Merger Agreement, RAAC entered into subscription agreements with certain investors (the “PIPE Investors”)
to which the PIPE Investors have committed to purchase an aggregate amount of $165 million in shares of Class A Stock at a purchase price of $10.00 per
share. The PIPE Investment was consummated substantially concurrently with the closing of the Merger.

Warrant

On February 23, 2021 in conjunction with the Merger Agreement, the Company entered into a Warrant Termination Agreement with the Warrant
holder. On July 21, 20201, pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, the Warrant was terminated immediately prior to the Closing.

Promissory Note

In October 2019, the Company issued a Partial Recourse Secured Promissory Note (the “Promissory Note”) to an executive officer for
approximately $9.9 million with an interest rate of 1.86% per annum compounded annually. The entire principal amount was used to purchase 1,191,872
shares of restricted stock. On February 23, 2021 the Company entered into a Stock Repurchase Agreement with the executive officer. In the Stock
Repurchase Agreement, the Company’s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of 174,243 vested shares of common stock from the executive
officer which will repay, in full, all the outstanding principal and accrued interest under the Promissory Note. At Closing Date, all outstanding principal
and accrued interest under the Promissory Note was repaid and the note was retired.
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Performance Options

On July 15, 2021 the Board of Directors determined and approved the performance milestones for 500,044 previously granted performance-based
stock options, which included a performance milestone for the successful completion of a material financing event. Upon completion of the Merger
approximately 33% of the options vested. The remaining milestones relate to financial metrics based on orders and revenue.
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Exhibit 99.2

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

The following discussion and analysis provide information which we believe is relevant to an assessment and understanding of our unaudited
consolidated results of operations and financial condition. You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of
operations together with our unaudited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included elsewhere in this Current Report on Form 8-K. This
discussion and analysis should also be read together with our pro forma financial information as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2021 included
elsewhere in this Current Report on Form 8-K. In addition to historical financial information, this discussion contains forward-looking statements based
upon our current expectations that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-
looking statements as a result of various factors, including those set forth under “Risk Factors” in our filings with the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Unless otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, references in this report to “Berkshire Grey,” “we,” “us,” “our,” ”the
Company” and other similar terms refer to Berkshire Grey, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Business Overview

We are an Intelligent Enterprise Robotics (“IER”) company pioneering and delivering transformative AI-enabled robotic solutions that automate
filling ecommerce orders for consumers or businesses, filling orders to resupply retail stores and groceries, and handling packages shipped to fill those
orders. Our solutions transform supply chain operations and enable our customers to meet and exceed the demands of today’s connected consumers and
businesses.

Our IER capabilities are grounded in patented and proprietary technologies for robotic picking (each picking or unit handling), robotic movement
and mobility (movement and storage of orders and goods), and system orchestration which enables various intelligent subsystems to work together so that
the right work is being done at the right time to meet our customer’s needs. We are a technology leader in robotics and AI automation with an intellectual
property position buttressed by trade secrets supporting our technologies and over 300 patent filings with 71 U.S. and international patents issued to date in
technologies including robotic picking, mobility, gripping, sensing and perception, general robot control, and differentiated supporting mechanisms. Our
proprietary technologies enable us to offer holistic solutions that automate supply chain operations. Our solutions include moving goods to robots that then
pick and pack ecommerce or retail orders, robotically moving and organizing inventory and orders within a warehouse or logistics facility, and robotically
sorting packages and shipments.

We are not a component technology company nor are we a conventional systems integrator. Instead, we create products from the technologies we
pioneer and develop, and then incorporate the products (product modules) into solutions — solutions that incorporate said modules and are designed by us
to meet customer performance metrics like throughput and accuracy rates. This technology plus performant, whole-enterprise solution view, enables
customers to focus on the core of their business and creates attractive returns for them. Following the whole-enterprise solution view, we not only make,
install, test, and commission the solutions, but we also offer customers continued support in the form of software updates as well as professional services
including maintenance, system operation, and cloud-based monitoring and analytics. Because of our modular approach to solutions and the role of our
software, we offer customers the ability to incrementally add to or change solutions, and we can incorporate outside technologies with our product modules
if desired. The same modular attributes mean we can offer small and large solutions and can design for brownfield and greenfield installations. We offer
customers a range of purchase options including a robotics-as-a-service (“RaaS”) program that minimizes the up-front capital required when compared to
conventional equipment purchase models.

To date, most of our deployments have been with large, Fortune 50 companies, where our technology and solutions in production have achieved
targeted metrics including throughput, accuracy, equipment effectiveness, and others. Our customers include Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. (“Wal-Mart”), Target
Corporation (“Target”), FedEx Corporation (“FedEx”), Meijer Distribution, Inc. (“Meijer”) and SoftBank Robotics Corp. (“Softbank”).

For the three months ended June 30, 2021 Meijer, SoftBank, and Wal-Mart comprised approximately 36%, 36%, and 15% of our revenue,
respectively. For the three months ended June 30, 2020 SoftBank comprised 97% of our revenue.

For the six months ended June 30, 2021 SoftBank, FedEx, and Meijer comprised approximately 38%, 30%, and 19% of our revenue respectively.
For the six months ended June 30, 2020 Target and SoftBank comprised approximately 78% and 22% of our revenue, respectively.
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Recent Developments

Merger Agreement

Subsequent to June 30, 2021, on July 21, 2021, the Company consummated the transactions contemplated by the Agreement and Plan of Merger (the
“Merger Agreement”), dated February 23, 2021, by and among the Company, Revolution Acceleration Acquisition Corp. (“RAAC”), and Pickup Merger
Corp, a Delaware corporation and a direct, wholly owned subsidiary of RAAC (“Merger Sub”). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, RAAC amended and
restated its second amended and restated certificate of incorporation and its bylaws such that RAAC changed its name to “Berkshire Grey, Inc.”. Refer to
Note 1 “Merger Agreement” and Note 14 “Subsequent Events” of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of COVID-19 a pandemic. It is not possible to accurately predict the full
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our business, financial condition and results of operations due to the evolving nature of the COVID-19 pandemic
and the extent of its impact across industries and geographies and numerous other uncertainties. For example, we face uncertainties about the duration and
spread of the outbreak, additional actions that may be taken by governmental entities, and the impact it may have on the ability of us, our customers, our
suppliers, our manufacturers, and our other business partners to conduct business. Governments in affected regions have implemented, and may continue
to implement, safety precautions which include quarantines, travel restrictions, business closures, cancellations of public gatherings, and other measures as
they deem necessary. Many organizations and individuals, including our company and employees, are taking additional steps to avoid or reduce infections,
including limiting travel and working from home. These measures are disrupting normal business operations and have had significant negative impacts on
businesses and financial markets worldwide. We continue to monitor our operations and government recommendations and have made modifications to
our normal operations because of the COVID-19 pandemic, including requiring most non-engineering or operations-related team members to work
remotely, utilizing heightened cleaning and sanitization procedures, implementing new health and safety protocols and reducing non-essential travel.

To date, travel restrictions and capacity limits at customer locations imposed in response to the COVID-19 pandemic have caused delays in the
deployment of two customer contracts; however, the pandemic has not significantly impacted our financial condition and operations. We cannot predict
the future extent or duration of the impact that the COVID-19 pandemic will have on our financial condition and operations. The impact of the COVID-19
pandemic on our financial performance will depend on future developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak and related governmental
advisories and restrictions. These developments and the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the financial markets and the overall economy are highly
uncertain and cannot be predicted. If the financial markets and/or the overall economy are impacted for an extended period, our results may be materially
adversely affected.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, revenues and expenses. These estimates and judgments include, but are
not limited to, revenue recognition including performance obligations, variable consideration and other obligations such as product returns and incentives;
allowance for credit losses; warranty costs; evaluating loss contingencies; accounting for stock-based compensation including performance-based
assessments; and accounting for income taxes and related valuation allowances. We base these estimates and judgments on historical experience, market
participant fair value considerations, projected future cash flows and various other factors that we believe are reasonable under the circumstances. Actual
results may differ from our estimates. Additional information about these critical accounting policies may be found in the “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” section included in our Registration Statement filed by RAAC on Form S-4 for the fiscal years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019. There have been no significant changes to our critical accounting policies or in the underlying accounting
assumptions and estimates used in such policies from those disclosed on Form S-4.

Summary of Recent Financial Performance

Revenue was approximately $4.5 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021 compared to approximately $2.8 million for the three months
ended June 30, 2020. The change is primarily due to an increase in customer deployment activity.

Revenue was approximately $8.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021 compared to approximately $29.0 million for the six months ended
June 30, 2020. The change is primarily due to the completion, and recognition of revenue at a point in time, of a $22.3 million customer contract in the first
quarter of 2020.

Gross loss was $0.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021 compared to a profit of $0.1 million for the three months ended June 30, 2020.
The gross loss for the three months ended June 30, 2021 was due primarily to increased overhead resulting from the growth in deployment operations.
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Gross loss was $1.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021 compared to a profit of $1.6 million for the three and six months ended June 30,
2020. The gross loss for the six months ended June 30, 2021 was due primarily to lower absorption of overhead costs as a result of overall lower revenues.

Combined general and administrative, selling and marketing, and research and development expenses for the three months ended June 30, 2021
increased to $31.0 million, compared to $13.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2020. The net increase in total operating expenses of
$17.3 million included a $5.0 million increase in stock-based compensation further described below, $6.0 million increase in salaries and related employee
costs related to personnel growth, and $5.1 million increase in materials and services.

Combined general and administrative, selling and marketing, and research and development expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2021
increased to $74.9 million, compared to $27.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020. The net increase in total operating expenses of $47.6 million
included a $28.2 million increase in stock-based compensation further described below, $10.1 million increase in salaries and related employee costs
related to personnel growth, and $7.4 million increase in materials and services.

The increase in stock-based compensation from three and six months ended June 30, 2020 to the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 is
primarily due to the revaluation of restricted stock awards that are treated as a liability as discussed in Notes 7 and 9 of Berkshire Grey’s Consolidated
Financial Statements. For other stock-based awards, stock-based compensation included in operating expenses increased by $0.9 million and $1.6 million
for the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 as compared to the three and six months ended June 30, 2020.

Net losses were $31.8 million for the three months ended June 30, 2021 compared to $9.7 million for the three months ended June 30, 2020. The
increase in net losses was primarily due to the increase in stock-based compensation expense and increases in operating expenses.

Net losses were $76.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021 compared to $21.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2020. The
increase in net losses was primarily due to the completion, and recognition of revenue, of a $22.3 million customer contract in the first quarter of 2020, the
increase in stock-based compensation expense, and increases in operating expenses. six months ended June 30, 2021

Results of Operations

The following is a description of significant components of our operations, including significant trends and uncertainties that we believe are
important to an understanding of our business and results of operations.

Comparison of the three and six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Revenue

Berkshire Grey generates revenue through the sale, delivery, installation of customer contracts in the United States and Japan. The following table
presents revenue as well as the change from the prior period.
 

   
For the Three Months

Ended June 30,       
For the Six Months

Ended June 30,      
(Dollars in thousands)   2021    2020    Change   2021    2020    Change  
Revenue   $ 4,503   $ 2,752   $1,751    64%  $8,468   $ 29,028   $(20,560)   (71)% 

Total revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $4.5 million and $2.8 million, respectively, an increase of $1.7 million or
64%. The increase is related to additional customer deployment activities.

Total revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $8.5 million and $29.0 million, respectively, a decrease of $20.5 million or 71%.
The decrease is primarily due to the completion of a $22.3 million customer contract for which revenue was recognized at a point in time in the first quarter
of 2020, whereas revenue during the first half of 2021 was generated from incremental development and deployment of customer contracts in which
revenue is recognized on a percentage of completion basis, and the sale, delivery, installation and/or completion of contracts with existing customers. Our
revenue can fluctuate significantly from quarter to quarter depending on the number of projects in process and the method of accounting used to recognize
revenues.
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In three months ended June 30, 2021, SoftBank and Meijer each comprised approximately 36% of our revenue, or 72% in total between the two
customers .In three months ended June 30, 2020 SoftBank comprised approximately 89% of our revenue. Since 2019, our revenue has been dependent
upon a few customers and we expect that we will continue to derive a majority of our revenue from a limited number of significant customers in future
years. No assurance can be given that our significant customers will expand their business relationship with us, will continue to do business with us, or that
they will maintain their historical levels of business. If our relationship with any significant customer were to cease, then our revenues would decline and
negatively impact our results of operations.     

Cost of Revenue

The following table presents cost of revenue as well as the change from the prior period.
 

   
For the Three Months

Ended June 30,       
For the Six Months

Ended June 30,      
(Dollars in thousands)   2021    2020    Change   2021    2020    Change  
Cost of Revenue   $ 5,240   $ 2,658   $2,582    97%  $9,938   $ 27,392   $(17,454)   (64)% 

Total cost of revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $5.2 million and $2.7 million, respectively, an increase of $2.6 million
or 97%. The increase in total cost of revenue was primarily due to increased revenue volume and increased overhead resulting from the growth in
deployment operations.

Total cost of revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $9.9 million and $27.4 million, respectively, a decrease of $17.5 million
or 64%. The decrease in total cost of revenue was primarily due to costs related to the completion of a $22.3 million customer contract for which revenue
and cost of revenue was recognized at a point in time in the first quarter of 2020.

Gross (Loss) Profit and Gross Margin

The following table presents gross profit and margin as well as the change from the prior period.
 

   
For the Three Months

Ended June 30,      
For the Six Months

Ended June 30,     
(Dollars in thousands)   2021   2020   Change   2021   2020   Change  
Gross (Loss) Profit   $ (737)  $ 94  $(831)   (884)%  $(1,470)  $1,636  $(3,106)   (190)% 
Gross Margin    (16)%   3%    (20)%   (17)%   6%    (23)% 

Total gross (loss) profit during the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was a loss of $0.7 million and a profit of $0.1 million, respectively.
Total gross margin was approximately (16)% for three months ended June 30, 2021 compared with 3% for three months ended June 30, 2020, a decrease
of 19% points. The change in gross profit of $(0.8) million and the decrease in gross margin percentage was driven by increased overhead resulting from
the growth in deployment operations.

Total gross (loss) profit during the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was a loss of $1.5 million and a profit of $1.6 million, respectively.
Total gross margin was approximately (17)% for three months ended June 30, 2021 compared with 6% for three months ended June 30, 2020, a decrease
of 23% points. The change in gross profit of $3.1 million and the decrease in gross margin percentage was driven by lower revenue and overhead
absorption in the six months ended June 30, 2021.

General and Administrative

The following table presents general and administrative expenses as well as the change from the prior period.
 

   
For the Three Months

Ended June 30,      

For the Six
Months

Ended June 30,     
(Dollars in thousands)   2021   2020   Change   2021   2020   Change  
General and Administrative   $ 4,710  $ 2,877  $1,833    64%  $8,853  $6,722  $2,131    32% 
% of Operating Expenses    15%   21%      12%   25%    

General and administrative expenses during the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $4.7 million and $2.9 million, respectively, an
increase of $1.8 million or 64%. The increase in general and administrative expenses included a $0.4 million increase in salaries and related employee
costs and a $0.8 million increase in information technology and infrastructure related costs.
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General and administrative expenses during the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $8.8 million and $6.7 million, respectively, an
increase of $2.1 million or 32%. The increase in general and administrative expenses included a $0.5 million increase in salaries and related employee
costs and a $1.2 million increase in information technology and infrastructure related costs.

Sales and Marketing

The following table presents sales and marketing expenses as well as the change from the prior period.
 

   
For the Three Months

Ended June 30,      
For the Six Months

Ended June 30,     
(Dollars in thousands)   2021   2020   Change   2021   2020   Change  
Sales and Marketing   $ 10,540  $ 1,667  $8,873    532%  $38,023  $3,338  $34,685    1039% 
% of Operating Expenses    34%   12%      51%   12%    

Sales and marketing expenses during the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $10.5 million and $1.7 million, respectively, an increase
of approximately $8.8 million or 531%. The increase in sales and marketing expenses included a $4.5 million increase in stock-based compensation,
$3.2 million increase in salaries and related employee costs related primarily to sales team personnel growth and expansion into Europe, and $1.0 million
increase in marketing services and materials to expand our customer reach, branding programs, and implementing systems to support planned future
growth. Approximately $4.2 million of the increase in stock-based compensation is due to the revaluation of restricted stock awards that are treated as a
liability as previously described.

Sales and marketing expenses during the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $38.0 million and $3.3 million, respectively, an increase of
approximately $34.7 million or 1038%. The increase in sales and marketing expenses included a $27.7 million increase in stock-based compensation,
$5.5 million increase in salaries and related employee costs related primarily to sales team personnel growth and expansion into Europe, and $1.3 million
increase in marketing services and materials to expand our customer reach, branding programs, and implementing systems to support planned future
growth. Approximately $22.7 million of the increase in stock-based compensation is due to the revaluation of restricted stock awards that are treated as a
liability as previously described.

Research and Development

The following table presents research and development expenses as well as the change from the prior period.
 

   
For the Three Months

Ended June 30,      
For the Six Months

Ended June 30,     
(Dollars in thousands)   2021   2020   Change   2021   2020   Change  
Research and Development   $ 15,741  $ 9,163  $6,578    72%  $28,051  $17,200  $10,851    63% 
% of Operating Expenses    51%   67%      37%   63%    

Research and development expenses during the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $15.7 million and $9.2 million, respectively, an
increase of $6.5 million or 72%. The increase in research and development expenses included a $2.4 million increase in salaries and related employee
costs related to personnel growth and expanded development programs and $3.4 million increase in research and development materials and services.

Research and development expenses during the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 were $28.1 million and $17.2 million, respectively, an
increase of $10.9 million or 63%. The increase in research and development expenses included a $4.2 million increase in salaries and related employee
costs related to personnel growth and expanded development programs and $5.3 million increase in research and development materials and services.
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Interest Income

The following table presents interest income as well as the change from the prior period.
 

   
For the Three Months

Ended June 30,       
For the Six Months

Ended June 30,      
(Dollars in thousands)   2021    2020    Change   2021    2020    Change  
Interest Income, Net   $ 3   $ 8   $(5)   -63%  $ 14   $ 273   $(259)   -95% 

Interest income, net during the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was less than $0.1 million for both periods. Interest income, net during
the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was less than $0.1 million and $0.3 million, respectively, a decrease of approximately $0.3 million or 95%.
The decrease in interest income is attributed to a decline in cash balances and interest rates on money market funds

Income Taxes

During the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020, Berkshire Grey recorded no income tax benefits due to the uncertainty of future taxable
income as Berkshire Grey has incurred net losses since inception.

We have provided a valuation allowance for all our net deferred tax assets as a result of our historical net losses in the jurisdictions in which we
operate. We continue to assess our future taxable income by jurisdiction based on our recent historical operating results, the expected timing of reversal of
temporary differences, various tax planning strategies that we may be able to enact in future periods, the impact of potential operating changes on our
business and our forecast results from operations in future periods based on available information at the end of each reporting period. To the extent that we
are able to reach the conclusion that deferred tax assets are realizable based on any combination of the above factors in a single, or multiple, taxing
jurisdictions, a reversal of the related portion of our existing valuation allowances may occur.

Non-GAAP Financial Information

In addition to our results determined in accordance with GAAP, we believe that EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA, each non-GAAP financial
measures, are useful in evaluating our operational performance. We use this non-GAAP financial information to evaluate our ongoing operations and for
internal planning and forecasting purposes. We believe that this non-GAAP financial information, when taken collectively, may be helpful to investors in
assessing our operating performance.

We define “EBITDA” as net loss plus interest income, income tax expense, depreciation and amortization expense.

We define “Adjusted EBITDA” as EBITDA adjusted for stock-based compensation.

We believe that the use of EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA provides an additional tool for investors to use in evaluating ongoing operating results
and trends because it eliminates the effect of financing, capital expenditures, and non-cash expenses such as stock-based compensation and provides
investors with a means to compare our financial measures with those of comparable companies, which may present similar non-GAAP financial measures
to investors. However, you should be aware that when evaluating EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA we may incur future expenses similar to those excluded
when calculating these measures. In addition, our presentation of these measures should not be construed as an inference that our future results will be
unaffected by unusual or non-recurring items. Our computation of these measures may not be comparable to other similarly titled measures computed by
other companies because not all companies calculate these measures in the same fashion.

Because of these limitations, EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA should not be considered in isolation or as a substitute for performance measures
calculated in accordance with GAAP. We compensate for these limitations by relying primarily on our GAAP results and using EBITDA and Adjusted
EBITDA on a supplemental basis. You should review the reconciliation of net loss to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA below and not rely on any single
financial measure to evaluate our business.
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The following table reconciles net loss to EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA during the years presented.
 

   
For the Three Months

Ended June 30,    
For the Six Months

Ended June 30,  
(Dollars in thousands)   2021    2020    2021    2020  
Net loss   $(31,754)   $ (9,683)   $(76,437)   $(21,425) 
Interest income, net   $ (3)   $ (8)   $ (14)   $ (273) 
Income tax expense   $ 7   $ —     $ 12   $ —   
Depreciation and amortization   $ 671   $ 800   $ 1,217   $ 1,000 

        

EBITDA   $(31,079)   $(8,891)   $(75,222)   $(20,698) 
Stock-based compensation   $ 5,309   $ 316   $ 29,488   $ 1,259 
Adjusted EBITDA   $(25,770)   $(8,575)   $(45,734)   $(19,439) 

        

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Sources of Liquidity and Capital

We have incurred a net loss in each of our annual periods since our inception. We incurred net losses of $31.7 million and $76.4 million during the
three and six months ended June 30, 2021, respectively. We incurred net losses of $9.7 million and $21.4 million during the three and six months ended
June 30, 2020, respectively. As of June 30, 2021, we have an accumulated deficit of $228.1 million. As an early-stage company, we have primarily
obtained cash to fund our operations through preferred stock offerings. From inception through June 30, 2021, we have received cumulative gross
proceeds from the sale of our preferred stock and warrants of $227.3 million to fund our operations.

As of the date of this Current Report on Form 8-K, we believe that our existing capital resources will be sufficient to support our operating plan and
cash commitments for the next 12 months. We completed the Merger with RAAC on July 21, 2021 and received proceeds, net of transaction costs, of
$192.6 million. Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors including the growth of the business, continued research and development in
our customer solutions, and support for our operations.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our cash flows during the years presented.
 

   
For the Six Months

Ended June 30,  
(Dollars in thousands)   2021    2020  
Net cash used in operating activities   $(39,340)   $(35,516) 
Net cash used in investing activities   $ (2,139)   $ (2,114) 
Net cash provided by financing activities   $ 495   $ 32 
Effect of exchange rate on cash   $ (43)   $ —   

    

Net decrease in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash   $(41,027)   $(37,598) 
    

Cash Flows for the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities during the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $39.3 million and $35.5 million, respectively. The increase
of $3.8 million in cash used for operating activities is the result of approximately $55.0 million increase in net losses offset by $33.3 million in adjustments
from non-cash operating activities and $17.9 million in changes from net operating assets and liabilities.

The increase in net losses of approximately $55.0 million is more fully described in the management’s discussion and analysis of operating results.

Changes in non-cash operating activity of $33.3 million include a $28.2 million increase in stock-based compensation, $3.9 million decrease in gain on
change in fair value of warrants, and an increase in depreciation of $1.1 million. $22.7 million of the increase in stock-based compensation is primarily due
to the revaluation of restricted stock awards that are treated as a liability as previously described.
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Cash used from changes in net operating assets and liabilities totaling $17.9 million is composed of a $26.6 million increase in cash from changes in
contract liabilities, a $17.0 million increase in cash from changes in accounts receivable, $7.3 million increase in cash from changes in accounts payable
and accrued expenses, partially offset by a $27.6 million decrease in cash from changes in deferred fulfillment costs, and a $5.4 million decrease in cash in
inventories, prepaid expenses and other assets.

Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $2.1 million and $2.1 million, respectively, and primarily relates
to the purchases of fixed assets.

Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities during the three months ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 was $0.5 million and less than $0.1 million, respectively.
The increase in cash provided by financing activities of approximately $0.5 million was due to an increase in the proceeds received from stock option
exercises.

Commitments and Contingencies

See Note 13 in the Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion on contractual commitments and contingencies.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In October 2019, Berkshire Grey issued a Partial Recourse Secured Promissory Note (the “Secured Promissory Note”) to an executive officer for
approximately $9.9 million with an interest rate of 1.86% per annum compounded annually. Under the terms of the Secured Promissory Note, the officer
will be personally liable for 51% of the unpaid balance of the principal and any accrued interest. The entire principal amount was used to purchase
1,191,872 shares of restricted stock. The Secured Promissory Note is collateralized by the restricted common stock. Berkshire Grey determined that the
entire Secured Promissory Note must be treated as non-recourse; as such, the balance of the note and related accrued interest are not presented on the
consolidated balance sheets.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 2 in the Consolidated Financial Statements regarding recent accounting pronouncements.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Sensitivity

We are exposed to foreign currency risks that arise from normal business operations. These risks include the translation of local currency balances
of foreign subsidiaries, transaction gains and losses associated with intercompany accounts receivable and payable with foreign subsidiaries, and
transactions denominated in currencies other than a location’s functional currency. As such, we have exposure to adverse changes in exchange rates
associated with operating expenses of our foreign operations. Any fluctuations in other currencies will have minimal direct impact on our international
revenue.

We regularly monitor the forecast of non-U.S. dollar expenses and the level of non-U.S. dollar monetary asset and liability balances to determine if
any actions, including possibly entering into foreign currency contracts, should be taken to minimize the impact of fluctuating exchange rates on our
results of operations. We have not entered into any foreign currency contracts as of June 30, 2021.

Interest Rate Sensitivity

At June 30, 2021, we had unrestricted cash and cash equivalents of $52.8 million. The unrestricted cash and cash equivalents are held for working
capital purposes. We do not enter into investments for trading or speculative purposes. As of June 30, 2021, all our cash equivalents were held in money
market funds. Due to the short-term nature of these investments, we believe we do not have any material exposure to changes in the fair value of our
investment portfolio as a result of changes in interest rates.
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Exhibit 99.3

UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Introduction

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements of Revolution Acceleration Acquisition Corp, “RAAC”, present the
combination of the financial information of RAAC and Berkshire Grey, Inc., (“Berkshire Grey”), adjusted to give effect to the Business Combination (the
“Combined Company”) and consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Subscription Agreements (collectively, the “Transactions”). The
following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation S-X.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of June 30, 2021 assumes that the Transactions occurred on June 30,
2021. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and year ended December 31, 2020
present pro forma effect to the Transactions as if they had been completed on January 1, 2020.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements do not necessarily reflect what the Combined Company’s financial condition or
results of operations would have been had the Transactions occurred on the dates indicated. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial
information also may not be useful in predicting the future financial condition and results of operations of the Combined Company. The actual financial
position and results of operations may differ significantly from the pro forma amounts reflected herein due to a variety of factors.

This information should be read together with RAAC’s and Berkshire Grey’s respective audited financial statements and related notes, the sections
titled “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of RAAC,” and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of Berkshire Grey,”, which are set forth in the Proxy Statement/Prospectus and are incorporated herein
by reference, and other financial information included elsewhere in this Current Report on Form 8-K.

The Business Combination is accounted for as a reverse recapitalization, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded, in accordance with
GAAP. Berkshire Grey has been determined to be the accounting acquirer based on evaluation of the following facts and circumstances:
 

 •  Berkshire Grey’s stockholders will have a majority of the voting power;
 

 •  The majority of the members of the existing board of directors of Berkshire Grey will comprise the majority of the members of the Combined
Company Board;

 

 •  Berkshire Grey’s existing management will comprise the management of the Combined Company;
 

 •  Berkshire Grey will comprise the ongoing operations of the Combined Company;
 

 •  Berkshire Grey is the larger entity based on historical revenues and business operations; and
 

 •  Combined Company will assume Berkshire Grey’s name.

Under this method of accounting, RAAC is the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, the
Business Combination is treated as the equivalent of Berkshire Grey issuing stock for the net assets of RAAC, accompanied by a recapitalization. The net
assets of RAAC are stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information includes the redemption of 23,251,823 of RAAC Public Shares at a redemption
price of $10.00 per share, transaction costs of approximately $27.4 million which include deferred underwriting commissions from RAAC’s IPO,
16,500,000 shares of RAAC Class A Common Stock issued pursuant to the PIPE Investment, and 196,765,903 shares of RAAC Class A Common Stock
are issued as Merger Consideration.



Description of the Transactions

On February 23, 2021, RAAC entered into the Merger Agreement. Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, a business combination between
RAAC and Berkshire Grey was affected through the merger of Merger Sub with and into Berkshire Grey, with Berkshire Grey surviving the merger as a
wholly owned subsidiary of RAAC. At the effective time of the Business Combination, each share of Berkshire Grey preferred stock, par value $0.001 per
share (“Berkshire Grey preferred stock”), and each share of Berkshire Grey common stock, par value $0.001 per share (“Berkshire Grey common stock”),
was converted into the right to receive 5.87585 shares of RAAC’s Class A common stock, par value $0.0001 per share. The purchase price for the
Berkshire Grey common stock and preferred stock had a cap of $2.25 billion. The consideration payable to Berkshire Grey stockholders consists of
225.0 million shares of RAAC Class A common stock at $10.00 per share (or $2.25 billion).

In connection with the execution of the Merger Agreement, RAAC entered into the Subscription Agreements. Pursuant to the Subscription
Agreements, the Subscribers have agreed to purchase, and RAAC agreed to sell to the Subscribers, an aggregate of 16.5 million shares of Class A common
stock for a purchase price of $10.00 per share and at an aggregate purchase price of $165.0 million (collectively, the “PIPE”). The obligations to
consummate the transactions contemplated by the Subscription Agreements were conditioned upon, among other things, customary closing conditions and
the consummation of the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. The following pro forma condensed combined financial statements
presented herein reflect the actual redemptions of 23,251,823 shares of Class A common stock by RAAC’s shareholders in conjunction with the
stockholder vote on the Business Combination contemplated by the Merger Agreement at a meeting held on July 20, 2021.
 

(in thousands)   Purchase price   Shares Issued 
Share Consideration to Berkshire Grey(a)(b)   $ 2,250,000    225,000 

    

 
(a) The value of Class A common stock issued to Berkshire Grey included in the consideration is reflected at $10.00 per share as defined in the Merger

Agreement.
(b) The total 225.0 million consideration shares include approximately 196.8 million shares to be issued for all issued and outstanding Berkshire Grey

common and preferred stock plus approximately 28.2 million shares underlying unvested and/or unexercised restricted stock and options.

The following summarizes the unaudited pro forma common stock shares outstanding under the no redemption and maximum redemption scenarios:

Ownership
 

   Shares    %  
RAAC Public Stockholders    5,498    2.4% 
RAAC Sponsor and Directors    9,583    4.2% 

    

Total RAAC    15,081    6.6% 
Berkshire Grey(a)    196,766    86.2% 
PIPE Shares    16,500    7.2% 

    

Total Shares at Closing (excluding certain Berkshire Grey shares)    228,347    100% 
Berkshire Grey-Remaining Consideration Shares(a)    28,234   

    

Total Shares at Closing (including certain Berkshire Grey shares)    256,581   
    



(a) Total consideration to be issued to Berkshire Grey is $2.25 billion or 225.0 million shares ($10.00 per share price). The total shares to be issued
includes Berkshire Grey common and preferred stock plus shares underlying unvested and/or unexercised restricted stock and stock options.
Accordingly, the consideration shares outstanding at the closing of the Business Combination has been adjusted to exclude the portion of
consideration shares that will be attributed to unvested, and/or unexercised share awards at the closing of the Business Combination.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of June 30, 2021 and the unaudited pro forma condensed combined
statements of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and year ended December 31, 2020 are based on the historical financial statements of
RAAC and Berkshire Grey. The unaudited pro forma adjustments are based on information currently available, assumptions, and estimates underlying the
pro forma adjustments and are described in the accompanying notes. Actual results may differ materially from the assumptions used to present the
accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information.

 



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED RAAC BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

(in thousands)
 

   
RAAC

Historical  

RAAC Pro
Forma

Adjustments  Note 3  
RAAC As
Adjusted  

ASSETS      
CURRENT ASSETS      
Cash and cash equivalents    124   41,193   (A)    41,317 
Accounts receivable    —     —      —   
Inventories    —     —      —   
Deferred fulfillment costs    —     —      —   
Prepaid expenses    365   —      365 
Deferred transaction costs      
Other current assets    —     —      —   

  

Total current assets    489   41,193    41,682 
Property and equipment - net    —     —      —   
Restricted cash    —     —      —   
Cash held in trust account    287,539   (287,539)   (B)    —   
Other non-current assets    —     —      —   

  

Total Assets    288,028   (246,346)    41,682 
  

LIABILITIES, MEZZANINE EQUITY AND STOCKHOLDERS’      
CURRENT LIABILITIES      
Accounts payable    —     —      —   
Accrued expenses    3,053   —      3,053 
Contract liabilities    —     —      —   
Promisory Note - related party    500     500 
Other current liabilities    —     —      —   

  

Total current liabilities    3,553   —      3,553 
Deferred underwriting fee payable    10,063   (10,063)   (C)    —   
Warrant liability    29,603   —      29,603 
Share-based compensation liability    —     —      —   
Other non-current liabilities    —     —      —   

  

Total Liabilities    43,219   (10,063)    33,156 
  

MEZZANINE EQUITY      
Redeemable convertible preferred stock    —     —      —   
Class A common stock subject to redemption    287,500   (287,500)   (D)    —   
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)    —       —   
Class A common stock    —     —      —   
Class B common stock    —     —      —   
Class C common stock    1   —      1 
Common stock    —     1   (D)    1 
Additional paid-in capital    24   51,216   (D)    51,240 
Accumulated deficit    (42,716)   —      (42,716) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income    —     —      —   

  

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)    (42,691)   51,217    8,526 
  

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit)    288,028   (246,346)    41,682 
  



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED BERKSHIRE GREY BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

(in thousands)
 

   

Berkshire
Grey

Historical   

Berkshire
Grey Pro

Forma
Adjustments  Note 3   

Berkshire
Grey As
Adjusted  

ASSETS       
CURRENT ASSETS       
Cash and cash equivalents    52,830   (2,200)  (E)    50,630 
Accounts receivable    2,669      2,669 
Inventories    2,719      2,719 
Deferred fulfillment costs    13,373      13,373 
Prepaid expenses    2,537      2,537 
Other current assets    2,091      2,091 

    

Total current assets    76,219   (2,200)     74,019 
Property and equipment - net    10,466      10,466 
Restricted cash    1,121      1,121 
Cash held in trust account    —     —       —   
Deferred transaction costs    1,770   (1,770)     —   
Other non-current assets    24      24 

    

Total Assets    89,600   (3,970)     85,630 
    

LIABILITIES, MEZZANINE EQUITY AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT       
CURRENT LIABILITIES       
Accounts payable    5,412      5,412 
Accrued expenses    12,339   (1,770)     10,569 
Contract liabilities    23,765      23,765 
Other current liabilities    181      181 

    

Total current liabilities    41,697   (1,770)     39,927 
Deferred underwriting fee payable    —     —       —   
Warrant liability    —        —   
Share-based compensation liability    21,371   (3,158)  (F)    18,213 
Other non-current liabilities    1,996      1,996 

    

Total Liabilities    65,064   (4,928)     60,136 
    

MEZZANINE EQUITY       
Redeemable convertible preferred stock    223,442   (223,442)  (G)    —   
Class A common stock subject to redemption    —     —       —   
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)       
Class A common stock    —     —       —   
Class B common stock    —     —       —   
Class C common stock    —     —       —   
Common stock    3   17  (G)    20 
Additional paid-in capital    29,237   224,383  (E), (F), (G)    253,620 
Accumulated deficit    (228,141)   —       (228,141) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income    (5)   —       (5) 

    

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)    (198,906)   224,400     25,494 
    

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit)    89,600   (3,970)     85,630 
    



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED BALANCE SHEET
AS OF JUNE 30, 2021

(in thousands)
 

   
RAAC as
Adjusted   

Berkshire Grey
As Adjusted   

Transaction
Accounting

Adjustments   Note 3   Pro Forma Combined 
ASSETS         
CURRENT ASSETS         
Cash and cash equivalents   $ 41,317  $ 50,630  $ 153,561   (A)   $ 245,508 
Accounts receivable    —     2,669   —        2,669 
Inventories    —     2,719   —        2,719 
Deferred fulfillment costs    —     13,373   —        13,373 
Prepaid expenses    365   2,537   —        2,902 
Deferred transaction costs    —     —     —        —   
Other current assets    —     2,091   —        2,091 

      

Total current assets    41,682   74,019   153,561      269,262 
Property and equipment - net    —     10,466   —        10,466 
Restricted cash    —     1,121   —        1,121 
Cash held in trust account    —     —     —        —   
Other non-current assets    —     24   —        24 

      

Total Assets   $ 41,682  $ 85,630  $ 153,561     $ 280,873 
      

LIABILITIES, MEZZANINE EQUITY AND
STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT         

CURRENT LIABILITIES         
Accounts payable   $ —    $ 5,412  $ —       $ 5,412 
Accrued expenses    3,053   10,569   —        13,622 
Contract liabilities    —     23,765   —        23,765 
Promisory Note - related party    500        500 
Other current liabilities    —     181   —        181 

      

Total current liabilities    3,553   39,927   —        43,480 
Deferred underwriting fee payable    —     —     —        —   
Warrant liability    29,603   —     —        29,603 
Share-based compensation liability    —     18,213   —        18,213 
Other non-current liabilities    —     1,996   —        1,996 

      

Total Liabilities    33,156   60,136   —        93,292 
      

MEZZANINE EQUITY         
Redeemable convertible preferred stock    —     —     —        —   
Class A common stock subject to redemption    —     —     —        —   
STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)         
Class A common stock    —     —     —        —   
Class B common stock    —     —     —        —   
Class C common stock    1   —     —        1 
Common stock    1   20   2   (E)    23 
Additional paid-in capital    51,240   253,620   110,843   (D),(E)    415,703 
Accumulated deficit    (42,716)   (228,141)   42,716   (E)    (228,141) 
Accumulated other comprehensive income    —     (5)   —        (5) 

      

Total stockholders’ equity (deficit)    8,526   25,494   153,561      187,581 
      

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity (deficit)   $ 41,682  $ 85,630  $ 153,561     $ 280,873 
      



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2021

(in thousands, except per share data)
 

   
RAAC

Historical  
Berkshire Grey

Historical   
Pro Forma

Adjustments  Note 3   
Pro

Forma  
Revenue   $ —    $ 8,468  $ —     $ 8,468 

Cost of revenue    —     9,938   —      9,938 
  

Gross profit    —     (1,470)   —      (1,470) 

Operating expenses:       
General and administrative    —     8,853   1,328   (H) (I)   10,181 
Sales and marketing    —     38,023   —      38,023 
Research and development    —     28,051   —      28,051 
Change in fair value of warrant liability    6,741   —     —      6,741 
Transaction costs    —     —     —      —   
Compensation expense    —     —     —      —   
Formation and operational costs    4,486   —     (4,486)   (I)    —   

  

Total operating expenses    11,227   74,927   (3,158)    82,996 
  

Loss from operations    (11,227)   (76,397)   3,158    (84,466) 
  

Other income (expense):       
Interest income    —     14   —      14 
Other income    —     (42)   —      (42) 
Interest income (expense) on marketable securities held in trust account    47   —     (47)   (J)    —   
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities held in trust account    —     —     —     (K)    —   

  

Net loss before income tax    (11,180)   (76,425)   3,111    (84,494) 
Income tax    —     12   —      12 

  

Net loss    (11,180)   (76,437)   3,111    (84,506) 
  

Weighted average common shares outstanding    10,658   3,782     228,347 
Net loss per common share - basic and diluted   $ (1.05)  $ (20.21)    $ (0.37) 



UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(in thousands, except per share data)
 

   
RAAC

Historical  
Berkshire Grey

Historical   
Pro Forma

Adjustments  Note 3  
Pro

Forma  
Revenue   $ —    $ 34,835  $ —     $ 34,835 

Cost of revenue    —     32,009   —      32,009 
  

Gross profit    —     2,826   —      2,826 

Operating expenses:       
General and administrative    —     15,935   718  (H) (I)  16,653 
Sales and marketing    —     12,910     12,910 
Research and development    —     35,806     35,806 
Change in fair value of warrant liability    590   —     —      590 
Transaction costs    828   —     (828)  (I)   —   
Compensation expense    52   —     (52)  (I)   —   
Formation and operational costs    173   —     (173)  (I)   —   

  

Total operating expenses    1,643   64,651   (335)    65,959 
  

Loss from operations    (1,643)   (61,825)   335    (63,133) 
  

Other income (expense):       
Interest income    —     280   —      280 
Other income    —     3,907   —      3,907 
Interest income (expense) on marketable securities held in trust account    8   —     (8)  (J)   —   
Unrealized gain (loss) on marketable securities held in trust account    (17)   —     17  (K)   —   

  

Net loss before income tax    (1,652)   (57,638)   344    (58,946) 
Income tax    —     5   —      5 

  

Net loss    (1,652)   (57,643)   344    (58,951) 
  

Weighted average common shares outstanding    9,280   3,554     228,347 
Net loss per common share - basic and diluted   $ (0.18)  $ (16.22)    $ (0.26) 



NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION
 
1. Basis of Presentation

The Business Combination is accounted for as a reverse recapitalization, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded, in accordance with
GAAP. Under this method of accounting, RAAC is treated as the “acquired” company for financial reporting purposes. Accordingly, for accounting
purposes, the Business Combination is treated as the equivalent of Berkshire Grey issuing stock for the net assets of RAAC, accompanied by a
recapitalization. The net assets of RAAC are stated at historical cost, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of June 30, 2021 assumes that the Transactions occurred on June 30, 2021. The
unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and year ended December 31, 2020 presents the
pro forma effect of the Transactions as if they had been completed on January 1, 2020.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2021 has been prepared using, and should
be read in conjunction with, the following:
 

 •  RAAC’s unaudited statement of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and the related notes included thereto which are included
elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and incorporated herein by reference; and

 

 •  Berkshire Grey’s unaudited consolidated statements of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and the related notes, included
elsewhere in this Current Report on Form 8-K.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020 has been prepared using, and should
be read in conjunction with, the following historical financial statements and notes thereto, which are included elsewhere in the Proxy Statement and
incorporated herein by reference:
 

 •  RAAC’s audited statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020; and
 

 •  Berkshire Grey’s audited consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2020.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information is not necessarily indicative of what the actual results of operations and
financial position would have been had the Transactions taken place on the dates indicated, nor are they indicative of the future consolidated results of
operations or financial position of the Combined Company. They should be read in conjunction with the historical financial statements and notes thereto of
RAAC and Berkshire Grey.

 
2. Accounting Policies

As part of the preparation of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements, certain reclassifications were made to align
RAAC’s and Berkshire Grey’s financial statement presentation. Management performed a comprehensive review of RAAC’s and Berkshire Grey’s
accounting policies. Based on its initial analysis, management has identified the presentation differences that would have an impact on the unaudited pro
forma condensed combined financial information and recorded the necessary adjustments.

 
3. Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Financial Information

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared to illustrate the effect of the Transactions and has been
prepared for informational purposes only.

The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared in accordance with Article 11 of Regulation S-X,
which requires the depiction of the accounting for the transaction (“Transaction Accounting Adjustments”) and presentation of the reasonably estimable
synergies and other transaction effects that have occurred or are reasonably expected to occur (“Management’s Adjustments”). RAAC has elected not to
present Management’s Adjustments and will only be presenting Transaction Accounting Adjustments in the following unaudited pro forma condensed
combined financial information.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined provision for income taxes does not necessarily reflect the amounts that would have resulted had the
Combined Company filed consolidated income tax returns during the periods presented.

The unaudited pro forma basic and diluted earnings per share amounts presented in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of
operations are based upon the number of RAAC’s shares outstanding, assuming the Transactions occurred on January 1, 2020.

Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet

The adjustments included in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet as of June 30, 2021 are as follows:
 
 (A) Reflects the release of cash held in trust account less payment of deferred underwriting fees and RAAC transaction expenses.



The table below represents the sources and uses of funds as it relates to the Business Combination:
 

(in thousands)   Note     
RAAC cash held in trust account    (1)    $ 287,539 
PIPE - RAAC Investors    (2)     64,000 
PIPE - New Investors    (2)     101,000 
Payment to redeeming RAAC Stockholders    (3)     (232,551) 
Payment of RAAC deferred underwriting commissions    (4)     (10,063) 
Payment of RAAC accounting, legal and insurance fees    (5)     (3,732) 
Payment of RAAC financial advisory fees    (6)     (4,574) 
Payment of RAAC insurance premiums    (7)     (790) 
Payment of Berkshire Grey accounting and legal fees    (8)     (2,200) 
Payment of Berkshire Grey financial advisory fees    (9)     (6,077) 

    

Excess cash to balance sheet from Business Combination     $ 192,552 
    

 
(1) Represents the amount of the restricted investments and cash held in the trust account upon consummation of the Business Combination.
(2) Represents the aggregate gross proceeds of the PIPE Investment.
(3) Represents the payment to RAAC stockholders who are exercised redemption rights.
(4) Represents the payment of deferred RAAC IPO underwriting commissions by RAAC upon consummation of the Business Combination.
(5) Represents the aggregate of the estimated payments of accounting, legal, financial advisory and placement agent fees by RAAC upon consummation

of the Business Combination.
(6) Represents payment of financial advisory fees by RAAC calculated as $4,500,000 plus approximately $74,000 in reimbursements.
(7) Represents payment of six year “tail” director and officer insurance premiums by RAAC.
(8) Represents payment of legal and accounting fees by Berkshire Grey.
(9) Represents payment of financial advisory fees by Berkshire Grey calculated as $5,000,000 plus and creditable against 2.75% of the sum of the cash

held in the Trust Account net of redemptions and the PIPE Investment Amount.
 

 (B) Reflects the release of cash held in trust account upon consummation of the Business Combination at closing (See Note 3(A)(1)).
 

 
(C) Reflects the payment of deferred RAAC IPO underwriting commissions by RAAC in the amount of approximately $10.1 million (see Note

3(A)(4)). The unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet reflects payment of these costs as a reduction of cash, with a
corresponding decrease in deferred underwriting commission liability.

 

 
(D) Post-Business Combination Class C common stock and warrant liabilities are classified as equity and liabilities, respectively. The following

table represents the impact of the Business Combination and PIPE Investment on the number of shares of RAAC Class A common stock and
represents the equity section:



  Common Stock              
  Number of Shares   Par Value              

(in thousands)  
Class A
Stock   

Class B
Stock   

Class C
Stock   

Class A
Stock   

Class B
Stock   

Class C
Stock   

Berkshire Grey
Stock   

Additional
paid-in
capital   

Accumulated
deficit   

Accumulated
Other

Comprehensive
Income  

Pre-Business Combination -
RAAC stockholders   —     3,833   5,750  $ —    $ —    $ 1  $ —    $ 24  $ (42,716)  $ —   

Pre-Business Combination -
Berkshire Grey   —     —     —     3   —     —     223,442   29,237   (228,141)   (5) 

Conversion of Class B common
stock to Class A common stock   3,833   (3,833)   —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —   

Reclassification of redeemable
stock to Class A common stock   28,750   —     —     3   —     —     —     287,497   —     —   

Less: Redemption of redeemable
shares   (23,252)   —     —     (2)   —     —     —     (232,549)   —     —   

Reclassification of Berkshire Grey
liability classified Stock awards
to Equity   —     —     —     —     —     —     —     3,158   —     —   

Berkshire Grey Stockholders   196,766   —     —     20   —     —     —     (20)   —     —   
PIPE - RAAC Shareholders   6,400   —     —     1   —     —     —     64,000   —     —   
PIPE - New Investors   10,100   —     —     1   —     —     —     101,000   —     —   
Balances after share transactions

of Combined Entity   222,597   —     5,750   26   —     1   223,442  $ 252,347   (270,857)   (5) 
Estimated transaction costs   —     —     —     —     —     —     —     (17,373)   —     —   
Elimination of historical

accumulated deficit of RAAC   —     —     —     —     —     —     —     (42,716)   42,716   —   
Elimination of historical par

amounts for Class A, Class B   —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —     —   
Elimination of historical stock of

Berkshire Grey   —     —     —     (3)   —     —     (223,442)   223,445   —     —   
Post-Business Combination   222,597   —     5,750  $ 23  $ —    $ 1  $ —    $ 415,703  $ (228,141)  $ (5) 
 

 (E) Reflects payment of Berkshire Grey related transaction expenses, including a reduction of deferred transaction costs and accrued liabilities.
 

 

(F) Share-based compensation liability reflects restricted stock awards issued to an executive officer, who purchased the awards using the
proceeds received from the partial recourse secured promissory note issued by the Company. In conjunction with the Transactions, the
promissory note was settled through the repurchase of 174,243 shares of vested common stock. The pro forma adjustments recorded reduces
the share-based liability to account for the repurchase of shares described above.

 

 (G) Reflects conversion of preferred stock, payment of transaction expenses (see note 3(E) and settlement of promissory note (see note 3(F)).

Adjustments to Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statements of Operations

The pro forma adjustments included in the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statements of operations for the six months ended June 30,
2021 and year ended December 31, 2020 are as follows:
 

 

(H) In conjunction with the Transactions, a partial recourse promissory note issued to an executive officer, the proceeds of which were used to
purchase restricted stock awards, was settled through the repurchase of 174,243 shares of vested common stock. This adjustment reflects a
corresponding reduction in stock-based compensation expense as a result of fewer outstanding shares associated with the stock award of
approximately $3.3 million and $0.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and year ended December 31, 2020, respectively. The
adjustment assumes the promissory note is settled via repurchase of at the time pro forma adjustment occurred.

 

 
(I) Reflects the reclassification of transaction costs, compensation expense and formation and operational costs incurred by RAAC of

approximately $3.3 million and $1.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and year ended December 31, 2020, respectively, to
General and Administrative expenses on the condensed combined statements of operations.

 

 (J) Reflects the elimination of interest income earned on marketable securities held in the RAAC trust account.



 (K) Reflects the elimination of unrealized loss on marketable securities held in the RAAC trust account.

 
4. Loss Per Share

Net loss per share calculated using the historical weighted average shares outstanding, and the issuance of additional shares in connection with the
Transactions, assuming the shares were outstanding since January 1, 2020. As the Transactions are being reflected as if they had occurred at the beginning
of the periods presented, the calculation of weighted average shares outstanding for basic and diluted net loss per share assumes that the shares issuable
relating to the Transactions have been outstanding for the entire periods presented. This calculation is retroactively adjusted to eliminate redeemed shares
for the entire periods.

The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial information has been prepared for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and year ended
December 31, 2020:
 

(in thousands, except per share amounts)   
Six Months Ended

June 30, 2021    
Year Ended

December 31, 2020 
Pro forma net loss   $ (84,506)   $ (58,951) 
Pro forma weighted average shares outstanding-basic and

diluted    228,347    226,527 
Pro forma net loss per share-basic and diluted   $ (0.37)   $ (0.26) 

Pro forma weighted average shares outstanding-basic and
diluted     

RAAC public stockholders    5,498    5,498 
RAAC Sponsor    9,583    9,583 

    

Total RAAC    15,082    15,082 
Berkshire Grey(a)    196,766    194,945 
PIPE Shares    16,500    16,500 

    

Pro forma weighted average shares outstanding-basic and
diluted (b)    228,348    226,527 

    

 
(a) Excludes approximately 28.2 million and 33.6 million Berkshire consideration shares for the six months ended June 30, 2021 and for year ended

December 31 2020, respectively, that will be issued upon the occurrence of future events (i.e., exercise of stock options). Total consideration to be
issued to Berkshire Grey is $2.25 billion or 225 million shares ($10 per share price). The total shares to be issued includes all issued and outstanding
Berkshire Grey common and preferred stock plus shares underlying unvested stock options. Accordingly, the weighted average pro forma shares
outstanding at close has been adjusted to exclude the portion of consideration shares that will be unvested, unissued, and/or unexercised at the
closing of the Business Combination.

(b) For the purposes of applying the if converted method for calculating diluted earnings per share, it was assumed that all Berkshire Grey stock options
are exchanged for Class A common stock. However, since this results in anti-dilution, the effect of such exchange was not included in calculation of
diluted loss per share. Shares underlying these instruments include approximately 30.9 million Berkshire consideration shares for unvested,
unissued, and/or unexercised stock options.


